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CUR VISION

As a leading provider of specialist
social care services we aim to
provide better lives for people
with severe learning difficulties,
challenging behaviours and
mentat health issues, helping them
discover greater independence
and an improved quality of life

We maintain exceptional standards
and retan our focus on high-quality
individual service needs making sure
people experience extraordinary
days, every day




Market overview

The UK social care market remains buoyant as demographic features,
market consolidation and an upward trend for outsourcing make a positive
impact on independent sector providers

Market size
and trends

ADULT LEARNING DIFFICULTY MARKET

Market size

-

Learning difficutty {LD)

1s a bife-tong condiion
14m people in the UK
have a learning difficuity
185 000 of these will
never be abte to ive
independeantly

40% of people with LD
also have a mental liness
UK Market for adult
residential care 1S

worth £3 2bn

Severe learning difficulty
market growing by 5 5%
per annum

This 15 a highly
fragmented market

in whuch CareTech has
less than a 2% share

Trends

Social services have an
‘Absolute Duty” in law
to provide {or purchase)
sevices

Trend 15 away from
residential care for

all but the most
cormplex people
Government policy
commitment towards
direct purchasing of
services by service users

Farrily carers often
favour residential
solutions
Complex regulatory
environment with star
ratings” beng withdrawn
Sigrubcant dual
diagnosis market
Consolidation of
providers and
occupancy/prce
trade~-offs characterise
the market dynamic

Market size

Across England alone
this market grew

by 57% last year

64 000 chidren looked
after by child support
services in England

74% of these children are
In foster care costing
E11bn per annum

FAMILIES AND YOUNG PEQPLE MARKET

Overall value of chidrens
market in Tngtand is
estimated at E67bn
Residential childrens
services are estimated

to be worth £995m

in England

Trends

Rising trend of

looked after chitdren
Reducing trend of chid
residentiat placements
Rising trend for
independent sector
children services

Rising trend for
independent sector
special education
Fostening 15 the preferred
option for most looked
after children

Market size

1in 4 people Inthe

UK will have a Mental
Health (MH) prablem
Total cost of care in
England is £12bn

Totat NHS/LA spend on
mental health 1s £5bn
Independent care homes
for mental iliness cost
E£685m (England)

MENTAL HEA{TH SERVICES MARKET

independent non
resident:al care for
mental iliness costs
E281m {England)

Trends

Future funding 15 secured

by the high profile
of mental llness and
its political signihcance

Commercial partnerships

support discharge
70% of prisoners
have MH problems
- Bradley Report

Reed Report encourages

community care




CareTech today

The demand for greater efficiency in social care will be an increasingly
important factor for iIndependent providers Alongside demand-led
service development, this pressure will drive consolidation and create

market opportunity

Qur position

ADULT LEARNING DIFFICULTIES
1442 adult LD capacity

Residential homes

Independent and group supported biving

Self funded care

Day opportunity programmes

FAMILIES AND YOUNG PEOPLE

111 Special needs children placements

Educatonal facilities

182 Fostering placements

Famity assessment centre

MENTAL HEALTH

74 mental health users

Many more with a dual diagnosts

Four focused services

One registered open hospital

Supported living arrangements

Care Pathway

{EARNING DIFFICULTIES Residentsal care
Independent supported Iving
Community SUppPort services

1,442

Capacnty

FAMILIES AND YOUNG PECPLE Residential care of children 293
Famnily assessrment
Fostering Capacity
MENTAL HEALTH Residential care 7 4*
Low secure and step down
Independent supported Lving Capacity

Community outreach

* In pracuice we have a significant number of users with dual diagnosis

of PLD with mental lilness




Delivering consistent growth

The 2010 results demonstrate our ability to deliver
further growth, against consistent strategic objectives

QOur business

LEARNING
DIFFICULTIES

FAMILIES AND
YOUNG PECPLE

MENTAL
HEALTH

With a national reputation for
excellence, CareTech’s care
and support leads the way
for quatity, innovation and
range of provision We offer
a pathway for our users to
enjoy an extraordinary life
with the support they want

A comprehensive programme
offering skilled assessment,
outstanding residential
solutions and caring foster
parents CareTech offers a
comprehensive programme
with real quality of service

Helping people back to normal
ife after a mental iliness

and supporting those for
whom recovery takes much
longer CareTech’s thoughtful
pathway approach s effective
and principled

Highlights Revenue increased by 7 5% to £89 7m EBITDA" increased 9 1% to £24 8m

{2009 £83 4m) (2009 £22 8m}

£89.7m £24.8m

up /5% up 9 1%

Profit before tax" increased by 20 3% to £18 4m Dituted earnings per share!” increased

{2009 £153m) by 12 6% to 30 6p (2009 27 2p)

£18.4m 30.6p

up 20 3% up 12 6%

Cash inflows from operating activities, before Full year dividend of 5 50p (2009 4 70p) per share,

adjustments, were £22 3m (2009 £19 8m) resulting in full-year dwidend growth of 17 0%

£22.3m 5.50p

up 12 6% up 17/0%

Overall capacity increased by 379 to 1,809 places  Capacity increase of 278 places from six strategic

acquistttons announced during the year
capacit
pactly strategic acquisiions

Statutory EBITDA™ reduced 6 2% to £19 Bm Profit before tax increased by 11 1% to E76m
highlights (2009 E£21 1m} {2009 £6 8m)

£19.8m
down 6 2%

£7.6m
up 11 1%

Diluted earnings per share tncreased
by 27 0% to 13 6p (2009 10 7p)

13.6p
up 270%

Cash inflows from operating activities were
£179m (2009 £19 8m)

£179m
down 9 6%

i) EBITDA s operating profit stated before depreciation share-based payments charge amartisatton of intangible assets

and adjustments {explained in note 4)

(1} Profit before tax and diluted earmings per share are stated before amortisaton of ntangible assets and adjustmenis (explained i note 4) and
fi) EBITDA 1s operatng profit stated before depreciation share-based payments charge and amortisation of intangible assets The statutory
heghlights EBITDA and cash inflows are c¢own due to the effect of adjustments {explained in note 4}

CareTech Holdings PLC 01
Annual Report and Accounts 2010



Charman’s
Statement

Leading the way

We are delighted, duning our hfth year as a public
Company, to continue to report strong growth

Farouq Sheikh
Charman

§ am especially pleased tnat in the [ast 5 years since IPO we
have increased

« Capacity from 42310 1,809,

= Revenue from £22 5mto £897m
= EBITDAfrom £24m to £248m
Diluted EPS from 4 1pto 306p

During this peniod we have established a strong presence

In the social care market having developed a weli-defined
range of services offering “care pathways across a number
of geographical areas Our passionate and cornmitted staff
have played a key role in achieving this whilst maintaining the
highest standards of care for our service users | am thankful
to each and every member of staff for therr valued
contnbuuon over this penod

Results

Revernue of EB37m (2009 EB34m) for the year to

30 Septermber 2010 represented growth of 8% and
generated EBITDA growth of 9% o £24 8m (2009 £22 8m)

The 20% growih in profit before tax 1o £184m (2009 £153m)
incorporates both the strong EBITDA growtn and the favourable
year-on-year net inancial expenses ansing from an effeciive
capital structure including attractive banking arrangements
negotated dunng the year

In March 2010 we raised E15m befcre expenses by a placing
of 375m new ordinary shares Reflecting the increased
number of shares in 1ssue our diluted earmings per share
grew by 13% to 306p (2009 272p)

Cash inflows from operating activities before tax of £22 3m
(2009 E19 8m) were 13% higher than the corresponding year
further dermonstrating the quality of the Group s income
stream Net debt at 30 Septernber 2010 of £113 3m (2009
£934m) includes consideration for acquisiiens announced
during the second hatf of the year and further nvestment in
the organic development of the Group Our robust balance
sheet s supported by freehold properties now esumated at

a value of £228m and bank facitives of E165m

Dnndend

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 3 66p {2009
310p) per share bringing the total dwdend for the year to
550p (2009 470p), being growth of 17% The final dvidend
will be patd subject to shareholder approval on 18 February
2011 to Shareholders on the register of members on

14 January 2011 Our pclicy s to increase the total dvidend
each year broadly in line wath the increase in diluted earrungs
per share

Strategy

Dunng our 5 years as a publc company we nave successfully
delivered against a consistent strategy Qur strategy remains
the same to continue to develop a range of specialist social
care services and 10 extend the geographical presence of

the Group

Whilst local authonties are under pressure to reduce public
spend.rg the vulnerabiiny of the people who we support
together with the strong demographic dnivers of our chosen
rmarkets continues to provide a highly sustainable and growing
market for the Group s care pathway range of serces

We have established ourselves as a leading prowvider of
specialist social care solutions and yet have less than a 2%
snare of the markets in which we operate Through a strategy
of selective acguisitions and investment in organic growin
we continue to consolidate and grow cur market share

Since putung in place approximately E85m of availlable
funds 1n April 2010 through the £15m share placing and

by extending the Group s bank faciity to £165m we have
announced six strategic acquisiions which have increased
capaciy by 278 places Furner details of these acquistions
are provided in the Cruef Executive $ Statement and Operating
Review Four of these acquisitions have extended our care
pathway range of children s services Into the specalisms of
fostering and emoticnal behavicural disorders { EBD ) whilst
the acquisition of Uplands extended our specialist mental
health capacity and St Michael s expanded the geograph.cai
caverage of our adult supporung iving services Into

North London

Capaciiy has also increased by 101 places during tne year
tnrough organic Inittatves Ncuding smalt bolt-on acquisiions
We are pleased to report that cur standards of care quality
continue to support high levels of occupancy

Our people

Due 1o the expansion of the Group dunng the year and 115
positicrung for further growtn we are delighted to welcome a
significant number of new colleagues | would lke (o thank all
of our employees for ther commutment dedication and hard
work in delivenng outstanding senvices every day and their
overall contnbution to Group performance duning the year

Qutlook and prospects

The 2010 results demonstrate our ability to delver further
groewth against consistent strateqic objectives Our extended
care patnway range of services young services users
high-guatity prowvision and existing growth capital provide

the Group with a strong platiorm going forward

With a sigruficant pipeline of further acquisition opportunities
comptementing our continued focus on organic growth

we are in a favourable comoetitve posian to support tocal
authorites and serices users with an effective and growing
range of services | look forward with confidence to furtner
progressin 2011

Faroug Sheikh
Charman
10 January 2011

Q2
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Five years of
strong growth

In the last 5 years

we have achieved
the following

Capacity 2010

11 8 0 gplaces

2005 423 places

Revenue 2010

£89.7m

2005 £225m

EBITDA 2010

£24.8m

2005 £24m

Dhtuted EPS 2010

30.6p

2005 41p

Extended care pathways into
fostering farnily assessment
emotional and behaviourat disorder
and mentat health hospital care
Expanded geographical reach
Invested in the acquisition and
development infrastructure

Further improved quality ratings

*

FAMILIES AND
YOUNG PECPLE

Branas Isaf
Therapeutic residential
centres with schools
enabling young people
to rebudld therr ves



Chief Executive s
Statement and
Operating Review

A strong position
for growth

We believe that the progress made by our Group durnng
the year provides us with a range of specialist services
which are delivered from an efficient and effective

cost base, placing us in a favourable market position

Haroon Sheikh
Chief Executive Officer

Qveriew of progress

During the year to 30 September 2010 we have continued
to deliver growth both organically and by acquisiion whilst
at the same time developing an operational platform which
we are confident will support our strategy

Capacity during the year was increased by 379 such that we
are able to support uo to 1809 vulnerable people Even wath
this 27% increase in capacity we were stil able 1o report that
occupancy levels remamned high at around 86% including
facilities being developed and between 92% and 93% for
established services

Organic inatives including smalt bolt-on acquisitions
contrbuted 101 places towards the Group s overall capaciy
increase during the financiat year Regional expans:on in
Yorkshire was strong and supported lving services continued
to be developed across the Group in response to market
demand We were also pleased to purchase a number

of homes in Nerth Wales To help atrract placements we
continue to Invest In our substantial freehold property
portfolio including reconfiguration projects where the nature
of service 1s modified in order to support the cnanging
needs of service users and/or their respective placing
commissioners

During the second half of the 2010 hnancial year wa
announced six acquisitons which ingreased capacity by
278 places Further details of these are provided later in
my review

QOur internal management structure has been further
developed We have established an acquisitions and
development team dunng the year and attracted a number
of expenenced sector specialists to our operational team In
addihon we have invested further in our supoort functions
including finance human resources estates management
and quality A project to provide an integrated software
solution across the Group is also In progress

Lacel authonies continue to dermand hign-quality services
at competitive fee rates and we believe that the progress
made by our Group dunng the year prowides us with a range
of speciabst services whicn are delivered frorm an efficient
and effectve cost base placing us in a favourable market
position

Strategic acquisitions

Acquistiions are undertaken in line with our strategy of
extending the care pathway range of services and expanding
the gecographical reach of the Group Dunng the second
half of our finangial year we announced six acquisiions for
a combined considerauon of £29 6m including deferred
and contngent consideration of £5 5m which together are
expected to be accretive to earrungs in the frst full year of
ooeration Some of the key attracuons of each acquisition
are as follows

Greenfields Care Group Ltd ( Greenfields | specialises in
delvernng positive outcomes for children with Emotional ang
Behavicural Disorders (EBD) Established in 2000 Greenhelds
has a caoacity of 17 beds across 7 hormes in South East
Wales and around Bristcl it supports and educates chidren
aged between 11 and 18 years old We see the acquisiton as
a high-quality entry platform for CareTech to support locat
authorires with EBD servces as part of our care pathway
solution for chridrens services

St Michael s Suppart & Care Ltd § St Michaelsis a
good-quality supported iving bustness for pecple with
learning difficutves and mental health requirements With

a capacity of 38 beds the business has established a strong
reputation in North London and extends the care pe hway
range of services that CareTech 15 able to ofierin this
geographical area

Qutlcok Fostering Services Ltd ("Cutlook ) was establisned
n 2002 and has continued to grow s market share by
providing an outsourcing solution to local authonties wath
a quality rating of "QOutstanding” Outlook s strong pipeline
of foster carers has been maintained thiough effective
recruttment and training programmes On acquisiion

85 children aged from tarth to 18 years old were cared for
by Cutlook foster parents for funding authonties located
mainly In London and the Home Counties We are delgnted
to have found such a strong partner to suppork Carelech s
entry into this highty fragmented and fast growing area

of social care provision and we look forward to the
complementary benefits of offering a fosienng soluton
alongside our existing chitdren s residential and farmity
assessment services

Park Foster Care { Park } 15 a high-quality provider of fostering
services with well-established relationships across a number
of local authorittes Based in Nantwich Cheshire Park joined
the Group with 87 child placements and 15 an aitractive
extension to the geographical coverage of CareTechs
fostenng services

04
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Delivering on
our strategy

A well-balanced
complementary range
of services delivering
strong professional and
commercial outcomes

Develop a range of sclutions within
specialist areas of social care
+ Individually taillored and innovative
services
» Mental health provision brings
chinical support to people with
complex needs
Delivering a pathway back to
community lving for people who
have been mentally il
» Care pathways for children
embrace assessment through
highly specialised childrens
homes and comprehensive
foster care provision

Increase capacity through organic
growth and acquisition
« Acquisitions as a platform
for organic development
+« New operating areas
+ Stmulating and exciting staff teams
drive organic inwtiatives

A partner of choice through strong

stakeholder relationships

+ Listering and responding

to our partners

Delivering the nght services

at the nght quality and pnce

= Developing innovatve solutions
that create the nght outcomes
for users of our services

FAMILIES AND
YOUNG PEGPLE

Foster Care

Nothing beats family life
and the fostering solution
15 the best option for most
locked after children



Chief Executive s

Statement and
Operating Review
continued
Branas 1saf has the capacity to support 21 children with Risk management
complex Emotional and Behavioural Disorders (EBD) The We have a strong focus on the guality of services that we
services provided from freehold properties based in North provide with our reporting and managerment struciure being
Wales further extend the Group s range of childrens EBD complemented by a comprehensive internal quality audit
solutions and their specialist nature attracts local authonty tunction working under the leadership of our Director of
placerments from a wide geographical reacn Quality and Performance
Uplands 15 a community-based freehold mental health Many of our services are regutated by Ofsted and the Care
nospital n Hampshire with a capacity of 30 The acquisition Quality Commussion { CQC )} Overall 87% of our service
of Uplands provides exciting opportunities for the Group users are looked after in good or excellent-rated faciites
to extend its speciabist mentat health capability and develop
complementary services from a well-established platform Across the Group we have a well-defined management
structure with clear principles of delegation and authority
Care pathway range of services supported by wntten policies and procedures At the same
All of our activities are as a provider of specialist secial care time we encourage a cutlure of open communication
A key aspect of our strategy 1s to provide a well-delined yet with both intermat and external stakeholders together with
broad range of specialist services to sUppoOrt ComMIssIoNers “‘whisileblowing facilites
tailored for the care and desred outcomes of iIndwvidual
service users The range of services ofiered by the Group We monitor and regularly review key performance Indicators
to meet market demand 1s referred to as a care pathway as indicated below
We have care pathways in the following specialities
Led by the Directer of Human Resources our managers
1 Adult learning dificulties including residential care have a clear focus on selective recruitment and staff learning
homes independent supported living ard communty and development requirements - supperted by policies
SUPPOrt services and practices to align staff skills with CareTech s current and
(i  Famuties and young people including residential future needs
care facikties for earning difficultes and emononal
behavioural disorders {'EBD™) foster care services Insurance policies are mantained and the adeqguacy of these
and family assessment are reviewed at regular intesvals
() Mental health including a commurity based haospital
residential care homes independent support ving and Large and growing market
community outreach Across the UK « 15 esumated that there are 14m adults
with learning difficulties (LD } and/or mental health {{MH?)
Principal nsks conditions of which around 185000 need care and support
The Group has policies and processes in place to dentify costing a total of £E74bn The residential adult LD component
mitgate and manage ocerational nsks of this rmarket 1s worth £3 2bn and cares for 54 000
indmwiduals whilst the residential MH element ameunts to
The following summarises the key issues which coutd have £1 3bn for 29000 people The remaining £2 Sbn of care is
a matenal impact on our reputation operaticns or hnancial prowided 1o adults who require supperied iving commnity
perfermance outreach servicas etc
«  Delvering high standards of care The adult LD and MH markes is not only large as exptained
+ Compglance with regulations legislation or duties above but also growing by approximately 5 5% per annum
of care due to advances in medical science and demographic
«  Managing our people effectively including attracting profites
retaimning and developing talent
= Sigruficant changes in government policy or legistaton Adult LD and MH market demand 18 saushed by a ughly
that impact market opportunities or operating fragmented profile of providers Approximately 33% of
performance prowsion Is by the “noi-for-profit” sector and about 20% 18
+  Managing profit margins if movemenits in operating provided for by local authonties themselves and may present
costs are detnmental relative to changes in fee rates opporwunities for further outsourcing The remaining 47%
»  Maintaining occupancy levels of the adult market is sausfied by the independent sector of
«  Outbreak of pandemic iliness that severely affects our which CareTech 15 a part 70% of independent providers have
staffing or occupancy levels three {aciliies or less and the largest six togetner have less
»  Funding to meet current and future business than 10% market share CareTech has less than a 2% share
requiremnents of the overall aduli market and 1s one cf the largest providers
06 CareTech Holdings PLC
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Range of
complementary
services

People with complex
needs require a diverse
range of support and
a clear pathway to the
outcomes they desire

Transition

All people have key change points
In thesr lives and our care pathway
approach reflects thus across all our
user groups We believe that a focus
on transition enables our users to
make a success of the changes they
need to make

Community support

» We aim to help people live an
ordinary Ufe in a home of their
own For many people this also
means a continuing community
support programme

Independent or group

supported living

+ Anideal solution for those who
need a higher level of support but
prefer a place of therr own Suitable
for peoplie with tearning difficuttes,
mental health service users and
young people who have left the
care system

Residential homes

= Vatuable and important resources
for people who cannot or choose
not to live independently Highly
requlated, outward locking and
with highly personalised support
the best residential homes offer
an outstanding solution for many

Nursing homes

» Residential homes with the beneht
of 24-hour nurse support provide
a solution for people requiring help
with therr physical health in addition
to social care

Child services

+ Offering support that ranges from
farmily assessment through highly
specialised residential hormes and
comprehensive foster care Qur
adult services complement this
range of provision with exceptional
transition and leaving care support

MENTAL HEALTH

Uplands

An open hosprial that
suppaorts pecple on

the pathway back to
community lfe The
resource for a diverse range
of commurnity services

Ay ol Puecalond et )



Chruef Executive s
Statement and
Operating Review

continued
The market for speciatst children s services 1s also large and To menitor and measure the Group s performance aganst
tighly fragmented Across England alone there are 64 000 its objectives a number of KPIs are focused on including
children looked after and this market grew by 5 7% dunng the following
the past year 74% {47 200 places) of these children are
in foster care which costs E1 lbn per annum in total Quality ratings for indmdual seraces
CareTech has less than a 0 5% market share and local Cocugancy movemens
authorities themselves facilitate 61% of the courtry s Staffing levels and headcount movements
fostenng services Care staff costs relative to service Income
EBITDA

Residential chitdren s services provide for about 8 170 Profit before tax
cnildren 1n England and this market has grown by 4 3% Earnings per share
dunng the past year CareTech have a market share of less +  Netdebi
than 2% «  Capacity growth

+  Investment capital applied as a muliple ot
Qur chosen markets are large and growing yet fughty EBITDA growth
fragmented We are a leading player with less than 2%
rmarket share across the care pathway range of senices Cutlock
We see considerable oppertunities to further consclidate Ecenomic condiions rernain camplex and the pressures on
the market n which we operate public spending present both challenges and opportunities

in our market As one of the largest and strongest providers
Strategy, objectives and key performance indicators ("KPIs”)  of senices in cur sector with a robust balance sheet and
QOur strategy of extending the care pathway range of effective business model we are well posiiored to gain
specialist social services across an expanding geographical market share through both organic developments and by
reach 1s complernented by a number of short medium and acquisiion |look forward to the year ahead with conhdence
long-term cbjectives
The objectives of CareTech include ganing market share by
delwenng high-quality services We regard our reputation
and relationships with service users socal warkers
commussioners starf and the community as criticat and take
our respensibiliies in ths respect very senously Attracting Haroon Sheikh
retaining and developing our staff 1s animportart objective Chief Executive Officer
as therr performance underpins service delvery performance 10 January 2011
and strategic growth Also to provide and support further
funding for expansion and Investment we are conunually
focused on operating efficiendy in the interest of all of our
stakehotders

08 CareTech Holdings PLC
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Growing our
market share

Carelech has a £9bn
addressable market
characterised by
fragmentation and a
low level of corporate
penetration

In-house regutatory team
Compnsing social care professionals
with years of requlatory expenence
the m-house quality team inspects
trains and supports the frontline
services Senior managers also visit
every service monthly and prepare
quality reports

Staff development

A mix of training courses on-line

learning and in-depth supervision

ensure that our operational teams
stay ahead of the pack

Service user engagement

We listen to our service users and
respond to what they and their
families' tell us We learn from
regular consultaiton meetings
surveys and reviews

Formal regulation

Services are routinely inspected by
the Care Quality Commission or
Ofsted {for child services) In addition
most social services departments
have ther own professional quality
audit teams who monitor what we do

LEARNING DIFFICULTIES
(R

Independent Supported
Living

Many people even those
with complex needs aspire
to live independently
Using personal budgets
and indvdual support
programmes CareTech can
make this dream a success



CareTech
People

Expertise

CareTech has an established reputation
for excellence in service provision with
the expertise to match

Joan Bone
Business Development Manager

I | Uke the fact that Directors
take such a lively interest i
development and prefer action
to endless meetings! There
I1$ no shortage of expertise
among Directors but they are
stilt good at listering to what

From Board level to the front ine CareTech has managers
and staff professionally qualified within the areas of expertise
required to be a leading-edge safe and innovauve provider
Cur expertise includes gualified social workers therapist and
health care professionals with extensive experence n child
care mental health and learning difficulues

Already a company with good strategic and operational
expertise CareTech has now evolved into a group with
quite inspirational leadership

Home-grown talent shrewd appomtments and wise
acquisttions have provided the Company with expertise in
learning difficulties child care fostering and mental health
In addinon the Creup enjoys the supoort of professional and
climnical colleagues from a wide range of erperts from socal
work and psychology it addition to a number of very
practical therapies

Maggie Hounslow

11 The Chief Executive Is

committed employer

people ke me advise them

10
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Quality Performance Manager

uncompromising about the
guality of our services and
really pushes us to learn
frorn the occasional mistake
For me, Carélech 1s a very

Qur development team has benefited from the recruitment
of indiwduals with a nattonal reputation on the sales side
and this bas advanced our ablity to make nght price

and sensible acquisiions across the UK

We are recogrised as expert providers and increasingly
invited 10 participate in round-table discuss.ons wnere
social pobicy in our field 1s discussed and developed

CareTech has also developed new ways of solving service
delivery prablems Qur model for early onset dementia
rernains the benchmark for aother providers while our
transition services and unique style of independent

living have been widely copied Innovatons in family
assessment and the support of yaung people with
behavioural disorder are currently enjoying considerable
INTerest aMong CoMImISS.ONers

John Greeanstll
Business Relationship Manager

11| first worked with people who
have a learning difficulty in
1574 Since then | have worked
for the NHS Local Authorities
and for over 10 years in the
independent care sector Most
recently | was the Head of
Service in a Jaint health and
councit service with a budget
of £42 million and supporung
over 2000 disabled pecple




Jackie Whute
Home Manager

1 | have worked in CareTech
for several years and had the
opportunity to move up the
ladder internally rather than
Jjust by changing Jobs 1 get
fantastic satisfaction from
my role and feel proud of
my service

Tom Gnimmutt
Supervising Social Worker

11 We are new to the CareTech
farmily and | have to say that
everyone in our fostering
group has been made to
feel welcome We like the
CareTech style and have been
Impressed by the in-depth
knowledge and genuine
interest shown by Directors
They are also keen to listen
and learn

LEARNING DIFFICULTIES

Resource Centres
QOpportunities for ife
equipping peopte with

the skiils to grab the
independence they want i
smali frnrendly local centres




Corporate Social

Being an integral part
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Responsibility X
of the community
During the year we have continued to strive for long-lasting
mprovements IN Our serviCces In a way that 1s consistent
with the interests and concerns of our stakeholder
community As always, the drnving force underpinning
Carelech’'s whole cperation continues to be the provision
of the highest quality of care to our service users
We care about our service users this out We value our staff at all levels and work closety |
They are the reason for our existence and satistying their with them tnrough our robust human resources department I
needs remains our key objective to foster consultation in all matters ensure faw pay for all i
maximise conditions of servce and facilitate flexible working !
As our orgarusation grows we strive ta maintain a culture where feasible ‘
which never forgets the important relauonship we have with
our service users We seek (o nurture these relationsiips and  We continue to foster inclusity and have regular newsle.ter
see them as partnerships of mutual interest and respect with publications including newly developed weekly briefs
our person-centred approach ensuring service user nterests praviding news frorm the services 1n a concise easy to read
are safeguarded and vulnerabilites rminimised format as well as regular staff surveys and team briefings
Each year awards are distnbuted by Sernar Managerment in
\ bi
The further expanston of our Care Pathway strategy seeks recognition of those services with outstanding performance
10 provide our service users with “whole of life” solutons
to their needs maximising iIndependence where possble by we have a team of in-house training staff delivering courses
encouraging educaton promoting chowce being proactive on all relevant subjects erabling our warkforce to gain the
with family relations prowding employment where feasible skills knowledge and confidence to provide the care and
and nurtunng personal ambition where nelpiul SUPPOIT 1O GUF SErvICe users on a dally basis
We are determined to preserve the dignity of those we Our sharesave share option scheme continues to offer new
care for and fully support government inibatives to this end Invitations regularly and is avallable to all our employees
We see making each day as fulfilled as possible for our This participation along with regular executive share option \
service users is a vital ingredient to their and our, success awards contributes to the futhlment of our desire to reward
staif loyalty dilgence and effort
We care about the environment
We continually sinve to maximise envworimenta! standards We care about quality and safety
In all areas of our organisation Energy costs are now As a Group Our aim is to provide an injury free working
closely scrutinised cenwrally and with the installation of smart environment for service users staff and visitors We value
meters being rolled our across our senices we are seeking the wellbeing of all stakeholders and strive to develop
to encourage more efficient consumption of energy of policies to this end
CoUrse Without COmMpromising service USer care In any way
Maintaining workplace infrastructures 1s a core objectve
Clnical waste management has an environmental Impact and sustaar?ed mvgstment niT fL;rnlture facilities ;and
and we are constantly focused on ways to make this more eqUIEMENt enable working environments be the
effective whilst still adhenng to statutory requirerments oﬂelrz onal o a dmmastrat%e 1o be safe and 070 d):.ucuve
il il [
We continue to am for minimal waste production and
waste-free processes Encouraging the involvernent of our Regulaten ‘;:90{0“? anl;fdgwh g}unlne ca:nd regular
workforce in seeking new ways 10 be green’ i important :ncs;éegt;(;r;‘séj Olf:tg»e;n?N: Cgr:nrew::oe re:;frie glr"r:rgai:on
and we are making progress in reducing our carbon
footprint in all commercial areas Including promoting hlghcljy exper lencferd ln:ernal qua:n'y tear; whlchr:ndtenages
recycling imibatives developing a carbon offset scheme a programme o ﬁgug;mipsc Il?nda; 55655 e:;l an
o per s g e o e e300 e W e e |
striving for energy efficiency -
services of outsourced expert agvisers ensunng best
We care about our staff practice and procedures are mantained
We remain committed to ensuring employees share in
the success of the Group and fully appreciate that Group We care about our communities
performance 15 atfected by the relationship we have with themy  DoIng business the nght way s of fundamental importance
to us A successful business needs to operate in healthy
Sustaining the retention and development of employees 1§ thrving communities and needs to be seen as a good
also critical to our continued success and we remain of the  nerghbour to those communites We have direct
betief that fostering a positive workplace culture 15 the best involvermnent i a vanety of community-based programmes
way for our employees to thrive Supporting ihem with further improving our service reputation and helping to
regutar supenssion traiming and clear career developmen. foster a swengthened relat onship wath local authorities
programmes prormotes staff continuity and leads to
imoroved standards of care quality We strive to identify the real value of cur crganisation
beyond 1is botiom ling and focusing on non-financial values
Equal opportunity for all remamns ai the heart of our such as reputation employee commutment and service
recruitment policies and the diversity of our workforce bears  user fulfilment as well as the "numbers” helps towards this
12 CareTech Holdings PLC



Building strong
partnerships

Partnerships are valued more
than ever during a period
when financial resources

are tight We cannot
compromise on outcomes
but open partnerships drive
value for commissioners

Service users and their farmilies
Increasingly users of our services
are encouraged to take charge of
thetr own service commissioning
We welcome this and work hard
to ensure that we broker the nght
support at a price that represents
outstanding value

Commussioners and care managers
Ensunng that there 1s a good range
of provision able to deliver support
in the right way to pecple in their
locality Commissioning and care
manager partners drive the way we
operate 1in each of our regions

Our frontline colleagues

Weekly team briefing information
cascades regular supervision and

an ambitious staff development
programme complement the regular
senior manager "watk about” events
that drives a whole team approach

LEARNING DIFFICULTIES

Prestwood

Offering a therapeutic
residential environment m
North Wales for people with
complex learring difficulties
and mental health 1ssues




Finance Review

Consistent strategy

The Group 1s In a strong position to continue as a leading
provider of high-quality specialist social care services Iin a

fragmented, large and growing market

David Pugh
Group Finance Director

Overview

The Group has made constderable progress dunng the yeal
In March 2010 we raised £15m before expenses by placing
375m ordinary shares and in April 2010 enhanced banking
arrangements were announced followng the negorauon
of a £165m facilty on attractive terms Together with our
highty visible stream of operating cash flow the Group was
extremely well positoned {0 make strategic acquisitions
and gain market share against a background of challenging
economic conditions Dunng the second half of our
financial year we were delighted to announce six strategic
acaquisihons which extended our care patnway range of
services and expanded the Group s geographical coverage

Income statement
The income statement before adjustments for the year s
summarnsed below

2010 2009
Em Em Growih
Revenue as7 834 75%
Gross profit 374 336
Administrative expenses (12 6) {i08)
EBITDA 248 228 91%
EBITDA margin 277% 27 3%
Depreciation (25) 22
Share-pased payments charge  {02) 02
Operating profit 221 204 84%
Net inancial expenses 37) {51
Profit before tax 184 153 203%
Taxation 37 {31)
Elfective tax rate 20 0% 203%
Proht for the year 147 122
Weighted average number
of dituted shares 481 449 (72)%

Diluted earnings per share 3057  2715p 126%
Full year dwidend per share 5 50p 470 170%

Revenue

Revenue of E89 7m (2009 E334m) was 7 5% higher than

In 2009 Excluding the revenue in both years for Lyndhurst
(which was acquired 1 2009) and that generated by the six
acquisitions announced dunng 2010 revenue grew by 2 3%

in our established services we conunued to experience righ
levels of cccupancy and reported just Gver 92% occupancy
at 30 September 2010 When blended with facihiies under
development the overall occupancy level duning ithe second

half of the year and at 30 September 2010 was just over
86% of capacity With tocal authonty budget being under
pressure most of our revenue growth was delivered from
Increases in tne volurne of occcupancy

The Group s revenue profile 1s strong We currently have
placements with 164 funding orgamisations including local
authonties and pnmary care trusts and cur largest ten
relationshups account for approximately 35% of total revenue
The average age of our service users 15 38 years old and

this together with the qualty of our facilities underpins
high levels of visibility for revenue and operating ¢ash flow

As explained in the Chief Executive s Staterment and
Qperating Review we have extended our care pathway
range of services dunng the financial year Adult learning
chfficulty services now contrnibute 86% of Group revenue
Including cornmunity and supported living seriices Four

of the six acquisiions anncunced dunng 2010 are farmily
and young people senvces which together with organic
provision have contributed 12% of total Group revenue
Mentat nealth provision reoresented 2% of our care pathway
range of integrated services

EBITDA

Excluding all acquistions made during both 2009 and 2010
fnancial years the EBITDA margmn was broadly the sarne
at around 27% aof revenue Increased occupancy delivered
overall growth in gross proft whilst the effective controd

of care costs enabled margins to be maintained

Inciuding acguisiions EBITDA grew by 91% to £24 8m
{2008 £228m) Fostenng services do not require high levels
of organic capital investment and operate on lower profit
margins compared to some of the other care pathway
solutions As the number of children looked after in foster
care continues to grow following the acguisiions of
Qutlook and Park there may be a consequential effect

on Group margings However the remaining four acquisitions
announced during 2010 enhanced the overall EBITDA
margin of 277% (2009 273%)

Adrministrative eypenses before depreciation and share-
based cayments charge of £12 6m {2009 E108m)
increased by £18m dunng the year and represent 14%

of Group revenue Property rental costs of £53m are
In¢luded witnin these administrative expenses and are

6% of revenue We continue to invest in our operating and
management siructures in order to facibtate furiher growth

14
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Industry leader
Leading the
market

CareTech’s managers have
pioneered new approaches
to care and developed
Innovative solutions that
deliver first-rate outcomes

Early onset dementia

Dementia s a significant 1ssue for
people with learrung difficulties
CareTech pioneered a specialist
maodel of care, winning many friends
and delivering fantastic results

Independent Supported Living

An early adopter of this approach
Carelech has developed a model that
enables us to support people with
very complex 1ssues across mental
health and tearning diffticulties

Residential care

Learning from our service users and
comrmussioners we have devetoped

a residential modet that draws on the
best of communtity supported living
and delivers outstanding value

FAMILIES AND
YOUNG PEOPLE

Greenfields

Young people at
Greenhelds have needs
that more traditional
approaches do not meet
They require the resources
skills and experience of

a service which provides
a nurturing fun-hlled
living environment with
the added advantages of
stability, structure safety
and unconchtional regard




Finance Review

continued
Operating profit and profit before tax Cash flow and net debt
A higher depreciation charge of £2 5m (2009 £2 2m} The cash flow statement and movement In net debt for the
reflected ongoing and additional invesiment 1n both our year 15 summarised betow
substantial portfolio of freehold properties and infrastructure
including motor vehicles and information technotogy 2%’;2 2%03
Following this ¢harge and share-based payments operating
proﬁt grew by 84%to £22 tm {2009 £204m) EBITDA before adjustments 248 228
Increase :n working capital
Net financial expenses of £37m (2005 £5 tm) were tower before adjusiments {2 5) (301
than the previcus year manly due to LIBOR rates being Cash inflows from operating actviies 223 198
significantly higher in the corresponding period In Apnl 2010 Tax recened/oad 02 22
we established effective hedging instrumenis alongside our
enhanced bank facilities to imit the Group s exposure to tnterest pad 37 @41
movernents in LIBOR Currently we have 1n place a LIBOR Dwidends pad 23 19)
cap of 1 80% rising te 2 75% over the rematning term of our Proceeds frorn the issue of shares 146 03
bank facilty expiring in April 2013 ©n a noticnal amount of Acquisitions and capital expenditure (42 3) (184)
E55m With attractive bank arrangements in place we are 12 ©5
well positoned to fund our ncome stream at an effective
overall cost of capital Adjustments 86) e
(198) 81
Profit before tax of £184m (2009 £15 3m) kas grown Opening net debt (93 4) {85 3)
by 20 3% Closing riet debt (1132)  (934)
Taxation and dituted earnings per share Ner deb at 30 Septernber 2010 of £1132m {2009 £934m)
The etfective tax rate continues at 20% and reflects has mncreased by £19 8m dunng the financial year We raised
managernent s expectations of future capitat investment £14 6m through a share placing and invested £42 3m m
relative to avalable caprtal allowances acqusitons and capital mproverments dunng the year
In March 2010 we increased our shares in1ssue by 8 2% Adiustrnents highlighted earber within the income
through a placing of 375m ordinary srares statement had a cash outflow effect of E86m The payment
of acguisition and development related costs amourited
With a greater average number of shares in issue we are o £4 5m and settlements ansing from ineffectve hedging
pleased (o report growth in diluted earnings oer share of arrangements contributed a cash outflow of £3 0m (2009
12 6% to 30 57p (2009 27 15p) per share £16m) Also ncluded in adjustments is a £1 1rm movernent
In respect of bank faciity arrangement fees
Dwvidends
CareTech s policy Is to Increase the total drvdend each year Excluding the share placing proceeds adjustments
broadly in ine with the growth in earmings per share before acquisibons and capital expenditure referred to above
adjustments The Board has proposed a final dvidend of the Group generated net surplus funds of E16 5m
3 66p {2009 3 IOp) per share brlngmg the total dividend for (2009 £116m) which demonsirates the hlgh quality of
the year to 5 50p (2009 470p) a growth of 17% Dwidend our Income stream
cover for 2010 based upon diluted earnings per share
before adjustments was S6 trmes (2009 5 8 umes} Cash infiows from operating activities
The £22 3m (2009 E£19 8mi cash inficw from operating
Adjustments actvities before adjustments represents a 90% (2009 87%)
As more fully explained In note 4 10 the financial statements EBITDA cash conversion ratic being a further year-on-year
the Directors have separately discosed a number of enhancement. Working capital increased as funding
adiustments on the face of the income staiement The authorities pay on credit terms and the Group revenue
adjustments include similar matters o those separately conanues to grow
disclosed in previous years as significant items together
with acquisiion and development related tems IFRS 3 (as Tax, interest and dividend cash flows
revised) has been adopted such that costs associated with Interest paid of E37m (2009 E4 1m) s reflective of .he
acquisitions have been charged to the income swterment net financial expenses per the INcome statement whilst
these are included within adjustmen.s dividends paid are consistent with the retevant section earlier
tn this review
16 CareTech Holdings PLC
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Net tax receipts of £0 2m (2009 E2 2m paid) arose due to cumulative rebief for minimum fuiure lease payments and an
enhanced level of capital allowance clarms

Acquisitrons and capital expenditure

During the year we invested funds of £42 3m (2009 £184m) and in addwion estimate that £15 3m may become nayable
as deferred and conungent consideration in respect of acquistiions completed dunng the year Together thus investment
of £576m can be further analysed as follows

Cash Deterred and

balances Funds contngent
Settled acqu red Invested consideration Total
Em Em £m Em Ern
Acquisitions announced in year 280 (39} 241 55 296
Other acguisitions In year 89 0 5) 84 98 182
369 (44} 325 153 478
Prior year deferred consideration 33 - 33 - 33
Capital expenditure 65 - 65 - 65
467 {44) 423 153 576

The investment of £29 &m relates 10 the strategic acquisition of Greenfields St Michael s Outloak Park 8ranas Isaf and
Uplands further details of which are explained in the Chief Executive s Statement and Operating Review as well as in the
notes to the financial statements

Investment in other acquisiions dunng Jhe year of £18 2m includes a one-way option to purchase a freehold property for
E£75m The remaining £10 7m was in respect of four small acquisitions

Deferred consideration of £3 3m was settled in cash dunng the year mamnly relating (o the acquisiion 1n 2008 of Beacons
freehold property portfolio

Capital expenditure of £6 5m includes approxsmately £3m to maintain our portfolio of assets together with the purchase
of around E3 5m of assets to facilitate growth

Banking arrangements

in April 2010 we refinanced our debt faciities on atractive terms £165m of bank faciliies were made available to the Group
consisting of an £85m term loan and E80m revolving credt line The facilities expire in Apnit 2013 and the terrn facility
amortises by £18 5m over the remaining term

As referred to earlier in this Review wee established effective LIBOR hedging instruments alongside the competitive terms
of our bank facility

We are delighted to have developed strong relauonships with Lloyd s and Santander alongside that already enjoyed with RBS

The Group continues to operate comfortably wathin its bank covenants and at 30 September 2010 had £518m of facility
headroom to support the strategy of consolidating the fragmented markeis in which we operate

Outlook

With a substanual portfclio of freehold properties highly predictable ncome siream and g asung access to growth capial
through attractive banking arrangements the Group 1s tn a sirong posiion (o continue as a teading provider of high-quality
specidlist socal care services in a fragmented large and growing market

Dawid Pugh
Group Finance Director
10 January 2011
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Governance

Board of Directors

Faroug Shetkh

Executive Charman {aged 52)
Farouq has been a key architect

in CareTech s growth having been
irvolved In the vision and strategy
from the outset In 1993 With a
background in law and a good
understanding of finance and
commerce Farouqg has been
instrumental (n secunng debt and
equity funding for the Company
as well as leading the management
tearm in winning a nurnber of
long-term contracts from local
and health authonties

Farouq has initiated and overseen
the successiul equity investiments
and the subsequent exits for

3t Group PLC (in 1996 and 2002)
and Barclays Private Equity (in
2002 and 2005) His intimate
knowledge of the marketplace
and his commercial and
negotiating experuse assisted in
the Group s growth In 2007 he
won Coutts Entrepreneur of the
Year award He also prasents at
healthcare conferences to raise
market awareness in the Learning
Dificulties sector

Haroon Sheikh BSc

Chief Executive Officer (aged 54)
Hargon Sheikh a London
University graduate 15 one of the
founder members of CareTech
Harcon brings commercial
acumen related industry
expenence and property
knawledge wiich has been
essential in the growth of the
business He has been actively
involved with Caréfech since its
nception N 1§93 and in fus role
as Chuer Executive Officer he has
played a major part In the success
of the Group

He s actvely involved in tne
day-to-day running of the
business and over ume has been
instrurmental in nurturng and
supporting the seruor
management team which
comprises disciplines in care
cormmerce and property He has
a deep commitment and passion
o delivering high-quality care
and support to people who have
a learning difficulty

David Pugh BSc Econ (Hons),
AMCT, FCA

Group Finance Director (aged 49}
After graduating fram Cardif
University with an honours degree
in economics Dawvid quatified

as a chartered accountant

with KPMG 1n 1986 then jomed
one of the largest operating
divigons of Courtaulds PLC In
1993 he qualified as a member
of the Association of Corporate
Treasurers Since 1993 David has
been Finance Director in a number
of muttinational PLCs delivering
strong growth both organically
and oy acquisition qncluding
businesses within tne support
services sector for the past

14 years Dawid joined CareTech
in August 2008 from FTSE-250
quoted Canllion ple He 1s also
Company Secretary

Stewart Wallace

Strategic Director (aged 61}
Stewart Wallace qualied as a
social worker i 1971 subsequently
cbtaining an MA in Social Policy
He gained wide expernence in
London as a practiioner policy
adwisor and senior manager

before joining Hardow Council

as head of community services In
1986 In 1992 he was appointed
Cirector of Develooment in what
15 now the Surrey Oadands NHS
Trust Subsequeruly he was
appainted General Manager of the
Trust s learning disability dvision
He returned to social services

in 1997 as a senior operations
manager before joimng the Board
of Care Solutions Lirmied a Care
UK PLC subsidiary as Development
Director He joined CareTech in
Novernber 2000 as Development
Dwector Stewart s a Non-Executve
Director of an NHS Trust

18 CareTech Holdings PLC
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Karl Monaghan

Senior Nen-Executive Director
{aged 48)

After graduating from Unwersity
College Dubln waith a Bachelor of
Commerce degree Karl trained as
a chartered accountant with KPMG
in Dublin He has worked i the
corporate finance departments

at a number of merchant banks
and stockbrokers latterly at Credit
Lyonnais Secunties for 7 years and
Robert W Baird for 2 years until
June 2002 Karl set up Ashling
Capital LLP In December 2002

to provide consultancy services

10 quoted and private companies
He sits on a number of AiM-quoted
and private company boards

Christa Echtle

Non-Executive Director {aged 52)
Chinista studied at the Unersity
of Wurzburg Germany where
she gained a BA in Sociclogy and
an MA In Psychology She also
gained an MBA In 1996 Christa

1s a8 psychetherapist and was
responsible for the establishment
of Reed Healthcare culminating
in her leading the demerger from
Reed Executve and full listing on
the Londen Stock Exchange in
2000 Upon leaving that positon
as CEQ of Reed Health Group plc
In 2003 she has since worked for
a small number of private equity
houses in the rote of Cnarrman

Mike Adams

Non-Executve Director (aged 39)
Mike has a significant track record
1n the social care and disability
sectors For 5 years he was
Drrector of the National Disability
Team responsible for policy and
practice for disabled students

N higher ecucation Mike was
Director of the Disabiity Rights
Comrmission for 2 years and has
been Chief Exccutive Officer of
Essex Coalition of Disabled People
a leading user-led organisaticn
since October 2007 Mike has
recently been acting Charr of a
large acute hospital trust in Essex
and has previously undertaken
the role of a visiting professo:

at Leeds Metropolitan University

CareTech Holdings PLC
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Governance

Directors’ Report

The Birectors present ther report and the audiied Group financial
statements for the year ended 30 September 2010

Principal actnaties
The Grouo s prncipal activity during tre year was the provision of a range
of specialist social care and housing support services throughout the UK

Business review and future developments
The consolidated income staterment detailed on page 29 sets cut
the Group s financial oerformance during the year

The Company is required by the Companies Act 2006 to include a
business review in this report The information that fulbls the requirements
of the business review can be found in the Chairman s Statement on
page 2 the Chief Executwe s Statement and Operating Rev ew on

pages 4 t0 8 the Finance Review on pages 14 to 17 Corporate Sociat
Responsibility information on pages 12 and 13 and the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 25 and 26 which are incorporated in this
report by reference These reports alse nclude detals of the performance
of the Group during the year ended 30 Septernber 2010 and 1its prospects
for the future

Key performance indicators are on page 1 and the key nisks and
uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Crief Executive s
Staternent and Operating Review on pages 410 8

Dwidends

Dividends of £1415 258 and £909 543 (total £2 324 802) have been
cald dunng the year The Directors prooose a iinal dvidend of 366p
per share (2009 3 10p) subject to approval at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

Share listing

The Company s crdinary shares are admitted to and traded on AlM

a market operated by the London Stock Exchange Further informaton
regarcing the Company s share capital including movements dunng
the year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements

Charnitable and political donations
No chanitable or political donations were made duning the year (2008 E£nil)

Financial tnstruments

The Group is exposed to a combmation of price credt interest rate
and cash flow nsks The Grouo uses inancial mstrumeants including cash
barrowings and interest rate swaps the main purpose of which are w0
raise finance for the Group s actvities and to manage interest rate nghs
Disclosures i respect of these instruments are set out In note 21 to the
financial statements

Payment of commercial debts

The Groups policy n relation to all of its suopliers 1s 1o settle accounts
In accordance with the payment terms agreed with tnose suppliers

The Group does not foliow any code of practice on payment of Creditors
or any other standard payment practice

The number of days purchases (‘crediior days’) cutstanding for
payment by the Group at the year end was 14 days (2009 24 days)
The Parent Company CareTech Holdings PLC, is a holding company
and does not trade

Employees

The Directors recognise tne benefits which anse from keep.ng
employees informed of the Croup s progress and plans and through
their participaton in the Group s performance The Greug 1§ therefore
commitied 1o providing its employees with infermaticn on a regular
pasis to consulting with them on a regular basis so that their views
and/or concerns may be taken Into account in taking decisions wnich
may affect their nterests and to encouraging their participation in
scnemes through which they waill benefit frorm the Group s progress and
proftatubty Carelech amns to foster a working environment in which
all employees are treated witn courtesy and respect and seeks at all
nmes to orovide opportunities to develop and reach their full potennial

The Group operates a sharesave share opticn scheme for eligible
employees details of which can be found in the Remuneration Report
The Board feels that share cwnershup among employees fosters team
spint and motvation and will contnibute 1o the ultimate success of

the Grouo

It 15 the Group s policy to ensure that disabled persons are treated farrly
and consistently in terms of recruitment training career developrnent
and promo*ion and that ther employment opportunities should be
based on a realisuc assessment of ther actitudes and abilities Wherever
possible the Group will continue the ermployment of persons who
pecome disabled dunng ine course of theirr employment with the
Group trrough retraining  acauisiton of special ads and/or eguipment
or the provision of suitable alternative ernployment

Contractual or other arrangements

The Directors consider that there are no contractuat ¢r other
arrangements such as those with major custemers or suppliers which
ave likelv to influence direcily or indirectly the performance of the
business and 1ts value

Environment
The Group seeks to comply with alt relevant environmental laws and
reguiations to improve the effectiveness of its environmental mpact
management

Authonty to atlot shares

Pursuant to resolutions approved at the Annual General Meeting on

10 March 2010 tne Directors were granted authonty to allot shares with
an aggregate norminal vaiue of up to the value of cne third of the share
capital of the Company

The Directors were also granted authority to allot equity securnties for
cash to the holders of ordinary shares as the Directors may determine
on the 1egister on a fixed record date in proportion {as nearly as may
be) to their respective shareholding or i accordance witn the rghts
attached thereto

Resclutions for the renewal of both of the above will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting further details of which together
with explanations of the resolutions to be proposed at the meeting
aopear in the "Notice of AGM and explanatory circular to Shareholders
wihicn will be sent to shareholders i good tme prior to the meeting
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 9 December 2010 being the date of the pretiminary resulis
announcement the Company had been notihed of or was otherwise
aware of, the following substantial interests of 3% or more i the
ordinary share capital of the Company other than those in respect of
Directors which are set out in the Remuneration Report on page 23

No of orcdinary

shares of 05p Percentage
Carmignac Gesticn 4595031 93%
F&EC Asset Managermnent 3953044 80%
BlackRock 2507950 51%
Aegon Asset Management 2167846 44%
JO Hambro Capitat Management 1865000 38%
Standard Life Investments 1497191 30%

Directors
The names of the current Directors together witn brief oiographical
details are shown on pages 18 and 19

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc have expressed therr withingness to continue in office
and in accordance with section 489 of the Companies Act 2006 a
resclution for their reappointment will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting

Cisclosure of information to the auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors
Report confirm that so far as they are each aware there s no relevant
audit Information of which the Company s auditor 1s unaware and each
Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Drector
to make himself aware of any relevant audnt information and to establish
that the Cornpany s audirors are aware of that information

By order of the Board

In accordance with the articles of association Farouq Sheikh and -
Chnista Echtle retire by rotation and, being elgible offer themselves pDavid R Pugh
for re-election Having been appointed since the last AGM Mike Adams Company Secretary
offers himself for reappointment 10 January 2011
The names of ali Diectors who held office in tne year are as follows Matopoltan House
3 Darkes Lane
Farouq Sheikh Potters Bar
Haroon Shedkh Hertfordshire
Dawid Pugh ENG 1AG
Stewart Wallace
Karl Monaghan
Christa Echtle
Mike Adams (appoirted 17 June 2010)
Richard Steeves {resigned 15 Apnl 2010}
The terms of the Directors service contracts and defails of the Directors
interests in the shares of the Company together with detalls of share
options granted and any other awards made to the Directors are
disclosed in the Remuneration Report commmencing on page 22
Directors’ insurance
The Company maintains appropniate Directors and Officers liability
insurance as permitted by the Cornpanes Act 2006
Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries the Drectors have reascnable
expectations that the Group 1s well placed to manage its business
risks successiully and has adequate resources to continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason the
Directors contnue to adopt the going concern basis In prepanng the
financial statements
CareTech Holdings PLC 21
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Remuneration Report

This report 15 approved by the Board and follows guidance laid down
in the Combined Code as far as 1s reasonably pracucable for a public
company of CareTech s size

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises 2 Non-Executive Directors
Chrnista Echtle (Charrman) and Kar Monaghan and meets at least twice
each year

its pnncipat duties are to review the scale and structure of the
remuneration and service comtracts for Executive Directors and
Senior Managernent and it also administers the Company s share
option schemes

The Commuittee takes into consideration enveenmental, social and
governance ( ESG) 1ssues in relauon to corporate perforrmance when
setting the remuneration of Executive Directors and takes steps to
ensure that the Incentive structure for senior management does not
raise ESG risks by inadvertently motivating irresponsible behaviour

Rernuneration philosophy

CareTech s remuneration philosephy 15 to provide for each of its
Executive Directors and key personnel a package which is adeguate to
attract retain and motivaie individuals of the appropnate calibre whilst
at the same time not paying more than 1s necessary for this purpose

The Remuneration Committee has the objective of ensuring that
remuneration packages are offered which

«  are set at a levet reflecting the compettive market in which the
Group operates

* have a sgnihicant part of remuneration linked to the achieverment
of performance targets

= have due regard to actual and expected market conditions

= are syuctured in accordance with the interests of shareholders and

» foster the development of a high-performance culture across
the Group

Thne {ollowing comprised the principal elements of remuneraticn
for Executive Directors and Executive Management for the year
under review

»  Dastc salary

« bonus

« benefits including car allowance vehicle expenses and
healthcare nsurance and

*  pension contnbulion

The rernuneration for Non-Executive Drrectors 15 set by the full Board
on the recommendation of the Executive Directors Non-Executve
Directors are not ebgible 1o participate in any of the Company s bonus
or share option schemes

Disectors’ service agreements
Executive Directors service contracts are generally subject to
12 months notice of terminaton on ether side

Tne Non-Executive Directors have each been appointed under
contracts which are subject to 3 manths notice of terminaten on
eiher side

External appointments

Executve Directors are permitted to accept or retain non-executive
appointments outstde the Company provided (here are no conflicts of
interest They are viewed by the Committee &s giving the opooriunity
to broaden Directors expenence and therefore provide benefit to the
Company Fees are retamed by the Executive Director concernad

22 CareTech Holdings PLC
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Directors’ remuneration (audited)
The vanous elements of remuneration received by each Director were as follows

Salary and fees Benefits Annuel borus Total Pension

Year to 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
30 September EQDO £000 £000 £000 EQCO £000 £000 £000 £000 e8]
Current Directors

Farouq Sheikh 300 235 38 17 37 37 375 289 6 4]
Haroon Sheikh 200 185 31 14 50 50 281 249 9 9
Stewart Wallace! 80 76 30 B 20 8 130 92 3 3
David Pugh 153 152 59 41 38 38 250 231 8 8
Karl Monaghan 39 33 - - - - 39 33 - -
Christa Echtle 37 32 - - - - 37 32 - -
Mike Adamis? 7 - - -~ - - 7 - - -
Former Directors

Richard Steeves® 34 39 - - - - 34 39 - -
David Spink* - 27 - 4 - - - 31 — 2
Totat 850 779 158 84 145 133 1,153 596 26 28

1 Stewart Wallace 1s contracted on a 3-day-per-week basis
2 Appomnted as Director on 17 Juna 2010

3 Resigned as Director on 15 April 2010

4 Resigned as Director on 31 Decermber 2008

Directors’ interests

The Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had the following interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company according to the

register of Directors nterests

30 September 2010 30 Septernber 2009

Nurnber of Number of

ordinary ordinary

0 5p shares 0 5p shares

Westrninster Holdings Limited! 10,422,500 10422 500
Cosaraf Trust? 2,060,000 2060000
Cosaraf Pension Fund? 20,600 20000
Faroug Sheikh 485,000 485000
Haroon Sheikh 485,000 485000
Stewart Wallace 473,374 473 374
Autovibe Limited 319,750 316750
Dawid Pugh 10,000 10000
Karl Monaghan 31,250 31250
Paragon (Premier) Properties Limited ® 5,916 5916
Mike Adamns 2,300 -

Westrminster Holdings Limited 15 @ company owned by a trust. the benehcranes of which include Farouq Shekh and Haroon Sheikh

Cosaraf Pension: Fund 15 a self-adrmnisiered scheme establisned for the beneht of Faroug Sherkh and Haroon Shekh
Autovibe Lirnited s a company wholly-owned by Wendy Wallace the wile of Stewart Wallace
Paragon [Prermier) Properties Limited 1s 8 company wholly-owned by Chnsta Echtle and her husband

[E -

Cosaraf Trust 1s 2 trust whose benehicianes are the etildren of Faroug Shekh and Haroon Sheikh Farouq Sherkh and Haroon Sheikh are the trusees of this trust

CareTech Holdings PLC
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Remuneration Report

continued

Longer-term incentives

Employees’ share trust

An employees share trust { the Trust’) was established 1n 2005 to acquire shares 1n CareTech Holdings PLC and noid them for the penefit of key
employeas and parucipants 1n the share option schermes At 30 Seprember 2010 the Trust held 77794 of the Company s shares being 0 16% of tne
total issued ordinary share caprtat

Share options

The Compary operates 3 share option schemes The Carelech Holdings 2005 Approved Share Option Scheme ((The Aporoved Scheme ) the
Carélech Holdings 2005 Unaoproved Share Option Scheme ("The Unapproved Scheme ) and the CareTech Holdings 2005 Sharesave Scherme
{"the SAYE Scheme’}

Options granted under the above schemes together with those remaining at 30 September 2010 are as follows

Options

remaming Option

Options Options Opuions 30 September price

Date of grant Schermne granted lapsed exarcised 2010 {pence)
13 October 2005! Approved Scheme 627375 (282085} {221457) 123,833 169
7 November 2005 SAYE Scheme 186 033 (43519 (142 514) - 136
2 August 20086 Approved Scheme 52427 (13 764) (3424) 5,239 292
2 August 2006 Unaporoved Scheme 8220 {8 220) - - 292
17 January 2007 Approved Scheme 162 885 (102 307} 123 236} 37,342 345
17 January 2007 Unapproved Scheme 18 263 (7574) (5785} 4,904 345
21 March 2007 Approved Scheme 6077 - - 6,077 452
1 February 2008 SAYE Scheme 101 397 (71121) - 30,276 440
2 May 2008 Appraved Scheme 114070 (54 394) (138) 59,538 410
2 May 2008 Unapproved Scheme 23843 {13 967) - 9,876 410
14 April 20092 Urapproved Scherne 92 308 - - 92,308 05
4 August 2009 Approved Scheme 191121 (34008) - 157,113 3325
4 August 2009 Unapproved Scheme 165050 (22 460) - 142,590 3325
12 August 2009 SAYE Scheme 202089 (44 639) - 157,430 254
3 August 2010 Approved Scheme 283754 (1868) - 281,886 305
3 August 2010 Unapproved Scheme 210653 - - 210,653 305
3 August 20102 Unapproved Scheme 92 308 - - 92,308 05

1 Scheme grant of options which have reached maturnty

2 Granof nomina cost options subpect 1o the ternis of the unapproved scherme amerded ru'es which inCiude speciic performence critena determining he level and
extent of exercisability These critena are set out below

Over the performance penod if

(  share price growth is less than 50% then the option shall not vest and shall not be exercisable and tne option shall lapse

{u} share pnce growth 1s equal to 50% then the opton shall vest and become exercisab'a over 33% of tne shares under opton

i) share pnce grovth I1s egual to 75% then the option shatl vest and become exercisable over 50% of the shares under ophion

(vt share price growth 1s equal to 100% then the option shall vest and becoire exercisabie over 100% of the shares under opton and

v} share pnce growth falls between the above share price targets then the extent to which the option will vest and the number of shares under option in respect of which
the option rnay be exarcised will be dewerrmined on a straght-lne basis bebween lhese points

Approved and Unapproved scheme options are exercisable at any trne from the 3rd anriversary of the date of grant to the 10th annwersary other than
nominal cost options which may become exercisable at the earliest after a period of 30 dealing days following the 3rd anriversary of being granted
SAYE scheme options are normally exercisable within & months following the 3rd anniversary of the date of grant

Directors’ share options
David Pugh holds options over 3572 (2009 3 572} ordinary shares of 0 5pin tne Company s SAYE Scheme 9022 (2009 ©022) ordnary shares of O 5p
in the Company 5 Executive Approved Scheme and 175 594 {2009 83 286} ordinary shares of C 5p in the Company s Executive Urapproved Scheme

By order of the Board

Chnista Echtle
Charman of the Remuneration Commitiee
10 January 2011

Metropolitan House
3 Darkes Lane
Potters Bar
Hertfordshire

ENG 1AG
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Corporate Governance Report

Do we comply with the Combined Code?

The Carefech Board of Directors {the Board ) remains committed

to achieving the highest standards of ntegnty ethics professionalism
and business practice throughout its operations

The Company s shares are traded on AlM and as such the Company 1s
under no obhgation to comply with the full requirements of tne Code on
Corporate Governance revised in June 2008

However, the Board 1s accountable to the Companys Shareholders for
ensuring effective governance and therefore strives to implerment policies
and procedures aimed at Code compliance as far as 1s reasonably
practicable for a public company of its size and complexity

This sets the tone for corporate behaviour and to help make our
governance meaningful and focused on improving our business and
protecting shareholder value

Who 1s on our Board?

As Execuuve Charrman Faroug, Sheikh leads the Board and 1s responsiole
for its effective running The Chuef Executive 1s Haroon Sheikh Dawd Pugh
1s the Group Finance Director and Stewart Wallace 1s Strategic Dwector
The Directors biographies appear on pages 18 and 19 and detail their
experience and sutability for leading and managing the Group

Karl Monaghan Christa Echtle and Mike Adams are the 3 Non-Executive
Directors and the Board considers each of them as independent for the
purpose of the Combined Code Richard Steeves resigned as Non-
Executive Deputy Chairman in April 2010 and Mike Adams mentioned
above was appointed in June 2010 Collectively the Non-Executive
Directers bring a valuable range of expertise and expenience in assisting
the Group to achieve 1S strategic aims

In the furtherance of therr duties all Directors are able to take
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company and
those newly-appointed are made aware of their respensibities by the
Company Secretary The Board approves the appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary

All Directors are required to submit thernseives for re-election at least
every 3 years and new Directors are subject to elecuon by Shareholders
2t the first opportunity followang therr appointment

How do we deal with conflicts of interest?

Following amendments to the Cempany s Articles of Asscciation In

2008 to reflect certan provisions of the Comparies Act 2006 relating to
conflicts of interest that came mito force on 1 October 2008 the Board
will follow a specific procedure when deciding whether to authornise a
conflict or potential conflict of nterest Firstly only independent Directors
{re those that have no interest n the matter under consideration) will be
able to take the relevant decision Secondly n taking the decision the
Directors must act in a way they consider in good faith will be most
likely to promote the Company s success In addition the Directors will
be able to impose imits or condittons when giving authonsation if they
think this 1s appropnate 1t remains the Board s ntention to report annuslly
on the Company s procedures for ensurning that the Board s power of
authonsation of conflicts are operated effectvely and that procedures
have been fotlowed

Board and Committee meetings

The Board meets in formal session regularly usually once each month
and members are supplied with financal and operational information
1 good ume for scrutny in advence of these meeungs

The Directors atiended the following meetings i the year to
30 September 2010

Audit Remuneration

HBoard Committee  Committee
Faroug Sheikh 10 3 2*
Richard Steeves (resigned 15 Aprit 2010} 6 1 1
Haroon Sheikh 10 1* -
David Pugn 10 3 -
Stewar: Wallace 8 1 -
Karl Monaghan 10 3 1
Christa Echtle 10 3 1
Mike Adams (appoinied 17 June 2010} 2 1* -

* By wmtauon

What decision-making responsibilities does the Board have?
Matters which are reserved to the Board for soecific consideration and
decision include

« Fmancial reporting and controls including statutory matters
such as the approval of final and intenm hnancial statements and
dwvidend declarations

»  Board membership and other senior key personnel appointments

+  Review of corporate governance arrangements

«  Group strategy matters including the approval of annual budgets
acquisiions and disposals

+  Review of the processes for montoring and evaluating nsk and
the effectiveness of the Groun s system of internal control and
operational efhciency

= Rewiew and supervision of treasury and hnancial policies and

«  Sharenolder commuricatons

Matters are delegated to Board Commuttees incvidual Directors or
executive management where appropnate The Directors believe the
Board 1s soundly constituted afthough at this stage of the Group s
development, t 1s felt the functions of 2 Nomination Commitiee

¢an be adequately fulhlied by deliberation of the {ull Board this will
nevertneless be kept under review

Who s on the Audit Commuttee and what do they do?

The Audit Committee compnises Karl Monaghan (Chairman),

Farouq Sheikkh and Chnsta Echile Other Directors and representatives

of the external auditors attend meetings by invitation as required The
Committee meets at least three times each year and recewves reports
from the Company s management and external auditors relating to the
annual and intenm acceounts and the accounting and internal controt
systerns throughout the Group The Commuitiee has direct and
unrestricied access to the external auditors and reviews all services being
provided by themn tc evaluate trerr independence and objectvity taking
INto consideration relevant orofessional and regulatory requirements N
order to ensure that said independence and objectmty are not impatred
by the provision of permissible non-audit services Details of the amount
pard to the externat auditors duning the year for audit and other services
are set out in note 3 to the financial statements
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Corporate Governance Report

continued

Wha is on the Remuneration Committee and what do they do?
The Remuneration Committee compnses Christa Echile (Chairman)
and Karl Monaghan The compositicn and role of the Remuneration
Committeg 15 set out In the Remuneraticn Report on pages 22 to 24
Also detalled in that report are Directers remuneration snarehcldings
and share option scheme information

A key Group strategy 1$ to attract and retamn talented and committed
personnel at every level of the organisational huerarchy and the
Committee aims to foster remuneration philosophy policies and
procedures to achieve this

How do we maintain effective relationships with our Shareholders?
The Board appreciates that effective communication with the
Company s Shareholders and the investment community as a whole
15 a key objective

The views of both insttutional and private Shareholders are imporiant
and these can be varied and wide-ranging as 1s therr interest In the
Companys strategy reputation and performance

The Executive Chairman has overall responsibility for ensuring this
communication is effectively discharged and for making the Board fully
aware of kay Shareholder s views comments and opinions

Contact with investors throughout the year s a prionty and the Board
does its best to look after tner interests General presentations to major
Shareholders fellowing the pubhicaton of the Group s annual and interim
results are conducted by the Executive Chairman the Group Finance
Drrector and the Strategic Director as are reqular meetings through

the year with fund managers and investment analysts

Robust year-on-year dividend growth Is an objective and all Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the Company s Annual General Meeting which
all Board members attend as this provides an opportunity to address
questions to the Directors

The Group s annual and Intenm reports are sent to all Shareholders and
all results Company announcements and related investor information
can be accessed via the Group s website www caretech-uk com

The websike 1s under constant review in an effort to maxinuse the
effectiveness of information made avaiable to Shareholders

How do we manage our internal controls and nisks?

The Board i1s ulimately responsible for the Group s systern of internal
controls and for rewewing its effectiveness The role of management s
to implement Board policies on nsk and control Independent assurance
1s provided by the external auditors Tne system of internal controls

1s designed to manage rather than eltminate the nisk of failure of the
achievement of business objecuves In pursuing tnese objectives internal
controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst
materal misstatement or loss

The recent challenging business cimate has resutted 10 a sustained focus
on the approach to nsk The Directors consider rabust nisk management
to be crucial to the Group s success and give a fugh prionity to ensuring
that adeguate systems are in place to evaluate and et nisk exposure
They have overseen the further development of processes and
procedures for identifiing analysing and marnaging tne sigruficant 7isks
faced by the Group These processes have been implemented dunng the
year under review and up to the date of approval of this annual report and
financral statements The processes and procedures are reqularly
reviewed by the Board

A process of control and hierarchical regorting provides for a
documented and auditable wrall of accountability These precedures
are relevant across all Group cperations tney provide for successive
assurances to be given at increasingly higher levels of management
and finally to the Beard

The processes used by the Board to review the effectiveness of the
systern of internat controls include tre following

» annual budgess are prepared for each operating busness Monthly
managerment repcriing focuses on actual performance against these
budgets for each operating ousiness

«  management reperts and external audit reports on the system
of ntarnat controls and any matenal control weaknesses that
are wdentihed

« discussions with management including discussions on the actions
taken on problem areas wWenufied by Board members or in the
external audit reports

«  policies and procedures for sucn matters as delegavon of
avthonties caoital expenditure and treasury management as well
as regular updates

«  review of the adequacy of the level of expenenced and professional
staff throughout the business and the evperuse of indrdual staff
mermbers so that they are capable of carrying out their indsadual
delegated responsibilites and

« review of the external audit work plans

By order of the Board

Dawvid R Pugh
Company Secretary
10 January 2011

Metropeclitar Houseg
3 Darkes Lane
Petters Bar
Hertfordshire

ENG 1AG
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Statement of Directors' Responsibilities
in respect of the Annual Report and the Financial Staterments

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group ang Parent
Company financial statements for each financial year As required by the
AlM Rules of the London Stock Exchange they are required to prepare the
Group iinanceal statements 1in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by tne
EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company
financiat staterments on the same basis

Under company law the Directors must rot approve the hnancial
statements unless they are satished that they give a true and far view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of thewr
profit or loss for that perod In preparing each of the Group and Parent
Company financial statements the directors are required to

« select suitable accounung poticies and tren apply them consistently

= make judgments and estimates that are reasonabte and prudent

= state whetner they have been prepared In accordance with [FRSs as
adopted by the EU and

+ prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern pasis unless it
IS tnappropriate to presume that the Group and the Parent Company
will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company s transactions
and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any ume the financial pesiion
of the Parent Company and enable them t¢ ensure that its financiat
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Group and 10 prevent and detect fraud and
otherrregutanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrnity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Company s website
Legistation in the UK governing the preparation and disseminaticn of
financial statements may differ from legistation in other junsdictions

CareTech Holdings PEC
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of CarelTech Holdings PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Careech Holdings PLC for
the year ended 30 September 2010 which comprise the consolidated
icome statement the consolidated and Parent Cormpany statements
of comprehensive Income the consolidawed and Parent Company
staternents of changes in equity the consolidated and Parent Company
Balance sheets and consobdated and Parent Company cash flow
staternents and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in therr preparation is applicable taw and
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the
EU and as regards the parent company iinancial statements, as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the Comparnies Act 2006

Trus report 15 made solely to the company s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

Qur audhit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company s members those matters we are required to state 1o them
Inan auditors report and for ro other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyane
other than the Company and the Company s rmembers as a body

for our audit work for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement set
out on page 27 the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satshed that they give a true and farr
view Qur responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and Intermaticnal Standards on Audiing {UK and
Ireland} Those standards require us 1o comply witn the Auditing Practices
Beards (APB <) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descnption of the scope of an audit of inancial statements 1s provided
on the APB s website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKNP

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion

= the financial statemenis give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group s and of the Parent Company s affairs as at 30 September 2010
and of the Group s profit for the year then ended

+ the Group inancial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the £U

» the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU and as
appbied In accordance with tne provisions of the Comparies Act
2006 and

« the hnancial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinton on other matter prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006

In our opinion the mformation given in (e Directors Report for the
financial year ror which the financial statements are prepared 1S consistens
wath the Anancial staterments

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report 10 you If in our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company or returns adeqguate for our audii have not been receved
from branches nct visited by us or

«  the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreemeant with
the accounting records and returms or

+ certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are
not made or

«we have not recewved alt the infermation and explanations we require
far our audit

ALt

GA Watts (Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
One Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham

B4 6GH

10 January 2011
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 30 September 2010

2010 2009
Before Before
adjustments  Adjustments® adiustments  Adiustiments-
Note £000 EQQO EODO EQOD £000 EDQD
Revenue 89,697 - 89,697 83421 - 83421
Cost of sales (52,321} - (52,321} (49,824} - {49 824}
Gross profit 37,376 - 17376 33597 - 33597
Adrministrative expensas (15,294) (5.929) {21,223) (13 227} {1994) (15 221)
Operating profit 22,082 (5,929) 16,153 20 370 {1994) 18 376
EBITDAR 24,848 (5,042) 19,806 22779 {1654} 21125
Depreciation 9 {2.496) - (2,496} (2200) - (2 200}
Amartisation of Intangible assets 16 - (887) {887) - (340) (340;
Share-based payments charge (270) - (270} (209} - (209}
Operating profit 22,082 (5,929) 16,153 20370 {1994) 18376
Financial incoeme [3) 23 - 23 15 - 15
Financial expanseas 46 (3,710) {4,503} (8,613) {5091) {(5491) {11582)
Profit before tax 18,395 {10,832) 7.563 15294 (8485) 6809
Taxation 47 {3,679) 2,637 {1,042) {3103) 1087 (2 016)
Comprehensive income for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the parent 14,716 {8,195} 6,521 12191 {7398) 4793
Earnings per share
Basic 8 1363p 1073p
Diluted 8 13 55p 10670
{# Seenote4
{iy  EBITDA 15 operating profit stated betore depreciation amortsaton of in angio'e assets and snare-based paymen.s charge
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 September 2010
2010 2009
£00D ECO0
Profit for the year 6,521 4793
Total comprehensive Income for the year attnbutabte to equity shareholders of the parent 6,521 4753
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 Septermber 2010

Share Share Merger Retaned Tota
capual prermium reserve earmings equity
Note EOOO £000 £000 FOG0 £ 000
At1 Octooer 2008 223 38543 5037 216 44019
Total comprehensive income
Proft for the year - - - 4793 4793
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Issue of ordinary shares 2 309 - - m
Equity settled share-based payments charge - - - 209 20%
Dividends 19 ~ - - (1918) (1918)
At 30 September 2009 225 38852 5037 3300 47414
At 1 Octaber 2009 225 38852 5037 3300 47414
Total comprehensive tncome
Profit for the year - - - 6521 6521
Transactions with owners recorded ditectly In equity
Issue of ordinary shares 18 23 14663 3461 - 18147
Equity settled share-based payments cnarge - - - 270 270
Dwidends 19 - - - (2,526) (2 326)
At 30 September 2010 248 53,515 8,498 71765 70,026
30 CareTech Holdings PLC
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

at 30 Septermber 2010
2010 2009
MNo.e £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 9 151,639 160330
Other intangtble assets 10 26,935 2619
Goodwill 10 26,159 15954

244,733 178903

Current assets

Trade and other recewables 12 11,434 10397
Cash and cash equvalents 13 10,008 4321
Tax recoverable - 464
21,442 15182
Total assets 266,175 184085
Current labilities
toans and borrowings 14 5,866 6125
Trade and other payables 15 24,821 18741
Tax payable 2,267 -
Deferred and contingent consideration payable 20d 14,735 6868
Deferred incorme 3,252 4467
50,941 36201
Non-current babtlities
Loans and borrowings 14 117,389 91585
Deferred tax labilities 16 20,905 12710
Dervative inancial instruments 6,314 6175
Deferred and contingent consideration payable 20d 600 -
145,208 110470
Total liabilitres 196,149 146 671
Net assets 70,026 47414

Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent

Share capital 18 248 225
Share premium 53,515 38852
Merger reserve 8,498 5037
Retained earnings 7.765 3300
Total equity attnbutable to equity sharehotders of the parent 70,026 47414

These financial statements were approved by tne Board of Directors on 10 January 2011 and were signed on is behalf by

F Shekh
Executive Chairman

D R Pugh
Group Finance Direclior

Company numbper 4457287
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 September 2010

2010 2009
Note £000 EOQD
Cash flows from operating actinities
Profit before tax 7,563 6809
Adjustments for
Financial Income (23) (15)
Financial expenses 8,613 11582
Adjustments for minimum future lease payment uplifts 22 1,560 1654
Bargain purchase credit 420 (3,828) -
Depreciaton 9 2,496 2200
Amortsasion 10 887 340
Share hased payments charge 270 209
Interest receved 23 15
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 17,561 22794
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recevables 1,153 {2332
Decrease In trade and otner payables 850 {682)
Cash inflows from operating activities 17,864 15780
Tax recewved/(paid} 234 {2 198)
Net cash from operating actmities 18,098 17582
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidianes net of cash acquired 20¢ (32,554) (8711)
Acquisition of property plant and equiprnent (7.849) (6 569)
Acquisition of intang:ble assets - {1128}
Acquisiion of software 10 (713) (208)
Net cash used n investing activities (41,116} {17016)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the 1ssue of share capital (net of costs) 18 14,647 k3l
Proceeds from new loan {net of costs) 24,992 10747
Interest paid (3,681} (4153)
Cash outflow ansing from ineffective hedging arrangements (3,025} {15801
Repayment of berrowings {1,200} (1200)
Payment of inance lease Labilities {702} {578)
Dwidends pad 15 (2,326} {1918)
Net cash from financing actmties 28,705 1629
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,687 2195
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 4,321 2126
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 September 13 10,008 4321
Net debt in the balance sheet comprnises
2010 2009
£000 EQQO
Cash at bank and in hand 13 10,008 4321
Bank loans 14 (120,934} (85724)
Finance lease and hire purchase contracts 14 (2,321} {1,986)
Net debt at 30 September (113,247) (93 389)
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Notes

1 Background and basis of preparation

CareTech Heldings PLC (the Company’) 1s a company regisiered and
domiciled in England and Wales The consclidated financtal statements
of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2010 comprise the
Company and its subsidianes {together referred to as the "Group’)

The consolidated financea! statements are presented in GBP {E) which
15 the Company s functional currency rounded to the nearest thousand
The Parent Company financial statements present information about
the Company as a separate entity and not about its Group

The consclidated hnancial statements were approved for release by
the Board of Drrectors on 10 January 2011

Golng Concern

The Group s business actiaties together with the factors ikely to affect
its future devetopment, perfarrmance and position are set out in «he
Chairman s Statement and Chief Executive s Statement and Operating
fReview on pages 2 10 8 The hinancial posiion of the Group, ts cash
flows hiquidity position and borrowing facilities are descnbed in the
Finance Review on pages 14 ta 17 In adcdition, nete 21 to the fnanciat
statements includes the Group s objecaives policies and processes for
rnanaging its capital its Ainancial nsk management objectives details of
its financial instrurments and hedging activilies and its exposures to credit
nsk interest rate nsk and higuidity nsk As highlighted in that note the
Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through a
mixture of bank facilities which are sufficient with cash flow from prohts
to fund present commitments

A new facility was agreed with the Group s bankers in Apni 2010 and
expires in Apnl 2013 The current economic conditions create some
uncerainty over the level of funding avaitable for the Group s services
Nevertheless the Group s forecasts and projections taking account
of reascnably possible changes in trading perfarmance show that
the Group expects to be able to operate withir the current levels of
its facilities

The Directors have a reasonable exoectanion that the Group has
adequate resources to continue it operational existence for the
foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting In preparing the annual inancial statemens

2 Accounting policies
{a) Applicable Accounting Standards
The Company 1s a company incorporated in the UK

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the
Directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU [ Adopted IFRSs™)

The accounting policies set out below have unless otherwise stated
been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Group
Anancial statements

The following adopted IFRS were available for early application but
have noi been applied by the Group in these financial statements

Effective for penods
Endorsed beginming on or after
IFRS 2 .
Amendments 1o clanfy scope and accounting for
group-settled share-based payment transactions in
the separate financial statements
Improvements Project
Amendments to vanous siandards including
1AS 1 Presentation of hnancial statements -
current/non-current classiication of
convertible instruments
1AS 7 Staterment of cash flows — ¢lassification
of expenditures on unrecognised assets
IAS 17 Leases - classification of leases of land
and builldings
IAS 18 Revenue - determining whether an entity
15 acting as principal or agent
I1AS 36 Imparment of Assets — unit of accounting
for goodwill imparment test
1AS 38 Measunng the farr value of an intangible
asset acquired In a business combination 1 January 2010
IAS 39 Financial instruments Recogniton and measurement -
treating loan prepayment penalties as closely-

1 January 2010

1 January 201C
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010

1 January 2010

related embedded derwvatives 1 January 2010
|AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and
measurement -~ cash flow hedge accounting 1 January 2010

The Directors antcipate that all of the above Standards and
Interpretations wilt be adop.ed in the Group s inancal staternents
for the penod commencing 1 Octaber 2010 and/or 1 October 2011
as appropnate and that therr adootion will have na matenal mpact
on the Anancial statements of the Group

Judgments made by the Directors n the application of accounting
polcies that hawe significant effect on the Airancral staternents and
estirnates with a significant nsk of matenal adjustment in the next year
are discussed in note 25

For «he year ended 30 September 2010 the following accounting
standards were adopted

= IFRS 3 Business Combinatcns (revised)
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs {revised)
I1AS 1 Presentation of financial stiatemenis i
IFRS 8 Operaning Segments

tFRS 3 Business Combinations

Tius standard s effective for perods beginning on or after 1 .July 2009
and has therefore heen applied by the Group from 1 October 2009
Trere are a number of effects from the application of this standard

as follows

= Allacquisitions of integra*ed sets of actmvites capable of
operating as a business are required to be accounted for as
a business combination

«  Acguistion cosis Incurred are expensed as incurred

«  Conungent consideration 1s esumated at its fair value as at the date
of acquisiion and thereafter remeasured at farr value untl setiled
Changes i fair value are recorded within finance income/expense
within the ncome statement and

« The revised IFRS 315 appliecd on a prospective basis only s0 no
changes are made 10 busmness cominauon accountng in the
pencds prior 1o 30 Septermber 2009
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Financial Statements

Notes
continued

2 Accounting policies continued

I1AS 23 Borrowing Costs

For borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitaisation 15 on or after 1 October 2009 the
Group capitalises borrowing costs duectly attnbutable 1o the acquisiion
construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of
that asset Previously the Group immediately recogrised all borrowing
COStS as an expense In accerdance with the transitional provisions
comparatve hgures have not been restated The impact in the year
ended 30 September 2010 1s that £360 000 of borrowing costs on
gualifying assets have been capstalised

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

This standatd s effective for periods beginring on or after 1 January 2009
and has therefore been applied by the Group from 1 October 2009 As
aresult the Group presents in the Consolidated Statement of Changes

in Equity all owner changes in equity A Consclidated Statement of
Compretensive Income 15 also presented Comparative informatan

has been re-presented so that i 15 2lso in conformity with the revised
standard Since the change is presentational only there 13 NO IMpact

on earnings per share

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

As of 1 October 2009 the Group 15 required by the standard to
determine and present operating segrments based on the information
that internally is prowided to the Chief Executive who 1s the Group s chief
aperating deasion-maker Previously operating segrnents were required
to be determined In accordance wath IAS 14 Segment Reporting Since
the change 1s presentationat only there is no impact on earnings per share

An operating segment s a component of the Group that engages in
business actvities from which it may earn revenues and INCur expenses
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any

of the Group s other comperients An operating segment s results are
reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive to make decisions about
resources o be allocated to the segment and (o assess Its performance
and for which discreet financial information is avalable

{b) Measurement convention

The financial staterments are prepared on the histoncal cost basis excent
that the following assets and Liaoilities are stated at thewr fair value
derivative financial instruments

The Group s business actviies together with the facrors kely to affect is
future development performance and position are set out in the Charman s
Staterment, Chief Executive s Statement and Operating Review and the
Finance Review on pages 2 to 17 The financial positon of the Company

its cash flows liquidity positon and borrowing facilities are described in

the Finance Review and in notes 14 and 21 to the financal statements whitch
include the Group s objectives policies and processes for managing s
captal s hnancial nsk management obectives details of ts financial
instruments and hedging actmties and its exposures to credit nsk and
liguidity nisk

The Directors have a reasanable expectation that the Company nas
adequate rescurces to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future Thus they continue (o adopt the going concern basis
of accounting In preparing the annual inancial statements

{¢) Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group Control exists when the
Group has the power directly or ndirecily to govern the hnancial and
operating policies of an entity 50 as to obtain benefits from its activities
In assessing control potental voung rights that are currently exercisacle
or convertible are taken inio account The financiat statements of
subsidianes are included 10 the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases

(d} Dervative financial Instruments and hedging

Denvative financial nstruments

Derwauve financial instrurments are recogrised at far value remeasured
at each reporing date The gain or loss on remeasurement o far value
15 recognised immediately in finance income or expense However
where dervatives are designated as a hedging instrument and qualify
for hedge accounting recogniion of any resuliant gain or loss depends
on whether or not the hedges are assessed as efiecive Where this s
the case changes in the fair value are recognised directly in equity and
transferred to the mcame statement in the same period tnat the hedged
item effects profit and loss {see below)

The {arr value of interest rate swaps 15 the esumaied amount that the
Group would recewve or pay {0 terminaie tne swap at the balance sheet
date taking Nto account curren. interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterpariias

Cash flow hedges

Where a denvative inancial instrument 1s designated as a hedge of

the vanability in cash flows of a recogrused asset or hability or a highly
probable forecast transaction the effectve part of any gan or 10ss on
the denvative iinancial nstrument 1s recognised directly in the hedging
reserve Any ineffective porgion of the hedge is recogmised immediately
N the income staternent

For cash flow hedges the associated cumulatve gain or 10ss 1$ removed
from equity and recogrised in the Income statement in the same penod
or penods dunng which the hedged forecast transaction affecis profit
or loss

When a hedging nstrument expires or 1s sold terminated or esercised or
the entity revokes designation of the hedge retaonship but the hedged
forecas. transaction is still expected 1o occur the cumulative gawn or loss
at that point rermnains In equity and is recogrised in accordance with tne
above policy when the transaciion occurs If the hedged transaction is
no lenger expecied to take place the cumulative unrealised gain or loss
recognised in equity 1§ recogrised in the Income staterment immediately

(e) Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciaton and impairment i0sses

Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materals
and direct labour any other costs directly attrbutable to bringing the
assets to a working condiuon for ther intended use and capitahsed
porrowing costs Purchased software that 1s integral to the functionality
of the related equipment 1s capiialised as part of that equipment

The cost of replacing a component of an itemn of property plant and
equiprment 1S recogrised in the carrying amount of the item if it1s
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
carmponent will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably
The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised The
costs of the day-to-day servicing of property plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or lass as ncurred

Where parts of an tern of property plant and equiprment have different
useful ives they are accounted for as separate items of property plant
and equipment

Leases in which the Group assumes substanually all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the leased asset are classified as finance leases Wnere
land and buldngs are held under leases the accounting treatment of the
land 15 considered separately from that of the bulldings Leased assets
acquired by way of inance lease are stated at an amount equai to the
lower of therr farr value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments at inception of the lease less accumulated deprec:ation and
imparment losses Lease payments are accounted for as descnbed below
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2 Accounting policies conunued

Depreciation 15 charged to the income statement over the estimated
useful kves of each part of an item of property plant and equipment
Land {which comprnises approximately 50% of the land and builldings
balance} 15 not depreciated The Directors reassess the residual value
estimates particularly in respect of properties on an annual basis The
estmated useful lives are as follows

+ freehold bulldings
+ long leasehold property

2% straight-ine

over the life of the lease
{to a maximurn of 50 years)
over tne bfe of the lease
25% reducing balance and
25% reducing balance

« short leasehold property
«  hxtures fithngs and equipment
+  motor vehicles

(f) Intang:ible assets and goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the puichase
method Geodwill represents on the excess of the fair value of the
consideration over the far value of the assets liabilities and contingent
liabiliies acquired on acquisition of subsidianes Identhable intangibles
are those which can be sold separately or which anse from tegal nghts
regardless of whether those nghts are separaole

Goodwall is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
Goodwaill 15 allocated to cash-generating units and is not amorused but
1s tested annually fer mpairment

Negatve goodwill (Bargain purchase credit) ansing on an acquisition
1s recognised In probt or loss

Cther intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and iImpairment losses

Amomisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-ine basis
over the estimated useful lives of ntangible assets unless such lives are
indefintte intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill are
systemaucally tested for impawment at each balance sheet date Other
intangible assets are amortised from the date they are avallable for use
The estimated useful ives are as follows

+«  Customer relatonships
» Software and licences

up t0 10 years and
up to 5 years

{g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group s cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the statement of cash flows

{(h} Impairment (excluding deferred tax assets}

The carnying amounts of the Group s assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whethe: there 15 any indicauon of impairmeant

If any such indication exsts the asset s recoverable amount is estimated

For goodwill assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets
that are not yet available for use the recoverable amount 1s estimated at
each balance sheet date

Anmpairment loss 1s recognised whenever the carrying ameount of
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds 15 recoverable amount
Irmparrment losses are recognised n the income statement

Impairment losses recognised in respect of casn-generating urits are
aliocated first to reduce the carmyng amount of any goodwill allocated to
cashr-generating urits and then to reduce the carmying amount of the other
assetsin tne unit on a pro-rata basis A cash-generating unit 1s the srallest
identhable group of assets that generates cash nfiows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Group s recevables carned at amortised
cost 1s calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the oniginal effective Interest rate Recevables with a short
duration are not discounted

The recoveranle amount of other assets 15 the greater of therr fav value
less costs to sell and vatue in use In assessing value I use the esumated
future cash flows are discounted 10 therr present value using a pre-tax
discoun: rate tnat reflects current market assessmenis of the time value
of money and the nisks specific to the asset For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash inflows the recoverable amourt s
deterrmuned for the cash-generating unit © which the asset belongs

Reversals of impairment

Animpairment loss in respect of a recevable carned at amortised cost 1S
reversed i the subsequent increase in recoverable amount Can be related
ahjectvely to an event occurnng after the imparrment toss was recognised

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 1s not reversed

In respect of other assets an impairment loss 1S reversed when there
15 an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exst and
there has been a change in the estrmates used 0 determing the
recoverable amount

An impairment toss 1s reversed only to the extent that the asset s carying
armount does not exceed the carmying amount that would have been
determined net of depreciation or amortisation If no iImpairmernt loss
had been recognised

{8} Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowangs are recogrised ininally at fair vaiue less
attnbutable transaction costs Subsequent to inital recogrition interest-
beanng borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between cost and redemption value being recogrised in the Income
statement cver the penod of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

Interest on qualifying assets 1s capitalised in accordance with 1AS 23
borrowing costs

{)) Employee benefits

Defined contrbution plans

Chblgatons for contnbutions to defined contribution pension plans
are recognised as an expense In the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income as incurred

Short-term benefits

Short-terrm employee benefit obligations are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related serice s prowided
A prowvision 1s recognised for the amount expecied to be pad under
short-term casih conus or profit-sharnng plans f the Group has a
present legal or consructive obhgaton o pay this amaount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably

Share-based payment transactions

The far value of options on the date granted to employees I1s recogrised
as an employee expense with a corresponding INcrease in equity over
the perod in which the ernployees tecome unconditionatly entitted to
the options The far value of the options granted s measured using an
option valuation model taking into account the terms and conditions
upcn wrich the cptions were granted The amount recogrused as an
expense 1s adusted to reflect the actual number of share optrons that vest
except wnere forfeiture is due only to share prices not achieving the
threshold for vesting
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Financial Statements

Notes

continued

2. Accounting policies continued

The Group ook advantage of the option available in IFRS 1 to apply
IFRS 2 only to equity instrumients that were granted after 7 November
2002 and that had not vested by 1 October 2006

{k) Prowvisions

A provision other than provisions for deferred taxahon 1$ recogrised in
the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and (115 probable that an outflow
of economic benehts will be required to settle the cbligation If the
effect 1s matenal, provisions are deterrmined by discounting the expected
rnsk-adjusted future cash flows at a pre-tax risk-free rate

(1} Revenue

Revenue compnses the far value of fee incarme recevable for the year
I respect of the provision of care services and 1s recognised In respect
of the days care that has been provided in tne relevant penod Revenue
invaiced in advance 1s included in deferred income until service 1s
provided Revenue in respect of Llcensing nghts 1s recognised on
commencement of contractual arrangements when fees in respect

of these are fixed non-cancellable and there are no further significant
delivery obligatons for the Group

{m} Expenses

Finance lease payments

Minmum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge
and the reduction of the outstanding llablity The finance charge 1s
allocated to each penod dunng the lease term 50 as to produce a
constant penodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the kabily

Adjustments

Adjustments are events or transacuons which n the opinion of the
directers by wirtue of size nature or Incidence are disclesed separately
In order to improve a reader s understanding cf the financial statements

Financing costs

Fimancing costs compnsing nterest payable on bank loans and
overdrafts finance charges on finance leases the unwinding of the
discount on provisions and the costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of barrowings are recognised In the iIncome staterment
using the effecuve irterest rate method

Interest iIncome and nterest payable is recogmised in profit or toss
as It accrues using the effective interest method

Financing costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisiion or
construction of a qualfying asset are caprabsed as part of the cost
of that asset

(n) Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprenensve INCome On a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease Lease incentives received are recognised in
the consohdated statement of comprehensive iIncome on a straight-line
basis over the lease term

The Group accounts for sale and leaseback transactions according to the
nature of the lease arrangement which anses Transactions which give
nse to an operating lease in which substanually all the nsks and rewards
of ownershep are transferred, result in a profit or oss on dispesal being
recogrused immediatety calculated by reference to the sale pnce and the
previous carrying vatlie Profts or losses ansing on ransact:ons giving nse
tc a finance lease where the Group retans substantally all the nsks and

rewards of ownership are deferred and amortised over the shorter of the
lease term and the bfe of the asset

(o} Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnises current and deterred
tax Tax s recogmised in tne INCOMe staiement except to the exient
that it relates 10 items recogrised directly in eguity in which case it
15 recognised in equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year using tax fates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sneet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years

Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and bab lites for financial reporung purposes and

the amounts used far taxation purposes The following temporary
difrerences are not provided for the imitial recagnition of goodwill

the indiat recognition of assets or labilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable proht other than i a business combination and difrerences
relating to investments in subsidianes to the extent that they will probably
not reverse N the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax
provided 15 based on the expected manner of reglisation or settlerment
of the carrying amount of assets and labiites using tax rates enacted
or substanively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset is recogrised onty Lo the extent thatitis probable \
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can 1
be utilised

(p) EBITDA and adjusted earmings per share
EBITDA as defined on page 29 15 Je key profit measure used by the
Board to assess the trading performance of the Groun as a whole

A measure of adjusted earrings and adjusted earnings per snare has been
presented in order to present the earings ¢f the Grouo after adjusted
items wiich are not considered 1o impact an assessment of tne trading
performance of the Group

{q) Business combinations

Accounting for bustness combinations

From 1 October 2009 the Group has applied IFRS 3 Business
Combmnations (2008} in gccounting for business cominations
The ¢hange in accounting policy has been applied prospectively

|
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method :
as at the acquisiion date which s the date on which control s |
transferred to the Group Control is the power to govern the financial and

operating pclicies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

In assessing conirol the Group takes into considerat:on potential votng

righits that currently are exercisable

Acquisitions on or after 1 October 2009
For acquisitions on or after 1 October 2009 the Group measures
goodwill at the acquisiuon date as

+  the fair value of the consideration transferred plus

« the recognised amount of any non-controfling interests in the
acquiree plus

+ if the business combination s achieved in stages the farr value of
the existing equity interest in the acquiree less

«  the net recogrised amount (gererally fair value) of the wdenuhable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed
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2. Accounting policies continued
When the excess 1S negauve a bargamn purchase gan 1s recogrised
immediately in profit or [oss

The considerayon transferred does not include amounts related to the
settlernent of pre-existing relatonships Such amounts are generally
recogrised in profit or loss

Costs related to the acquisiion other than those associated with the
1ssue of debt or equity secunities that the Group ncurs in connection with
a business combination are expensed as Incurred

Any conungent consideraion payable 1S recogrused at fair value at the
acquisiion date If the contingent consideration is classtfied as equity K1s
not remeasured and settlerment 1s accounted for within equity Ctherwise
subsequent changes to the farr value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in finance income or expense in the income staterment

When share-based payment awards {replacement awards) are required ¢
be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree s employees facquiree s
awards) and relate to past services then all or a portion cf the amount of
the acquirer s replacement swards s ncluded in measunng the
consideration transferred in the business combination This determination
15 based on the market-based value of the replacement awards compared
wiath the market-based value of the acquiree s awards and tne extent to
which the replacement awards relate to past and/or future service

Acquisitions between 1 October 2006 and 1 October 2009

For acquisitions between 1 October 2006 and 1 October 2009 goodwaill
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition aver the Group s
interest in the recogrised amount (generally far valug) of the dentfable
assets llabiives and contingent babiites of the acquiree When

the excess was negative, a bargain purchase gain was recogrused
immedtately in profit or loss

3 Auditors’ remuneration

Transacuon costs other than those associated with the 1ssue of debt
or equity securities that the Group ncurred in connecuon wath business
combinations were capitalised as part of the cost of the acquisition

Acquisiions prior to 1 October 2006 (date of transition to {FRSs)

In respect of acquisiions prior ta 1 October 2006 goodwill represents
the amount recogrised under the Group s prévious accounting
framework UK GAAP

{r} Segment reporting

The Group has adog-ed IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” with effect from

1 Cctober 2009 An operating segment 1s a component of the Group
that engages in bustness actvihies from which i1 may earn revenues and
incur expenses [FRS 8 requires disclosure of the operating segments
which are reported to the Chief Operating Deciston Maker (CODM ) The
CQDM has been identified as the Chief Executive who has responsibility
for planning and controlking the actviies of the Group

The Group s reportable segment nas been :dentified as provisicn of care
services The provision of care services covers a wide range of possible
activities a number of wnich are undertaken by the Group Across the
Group there 1s considered 1o be a commonality in the nature of the
services the type of customer the methods used to provide senvices
and the regulatory environment Information is provided 10 the CODM
on a home-by-home basis and aggregated to form the Group results
under IFRS as reparted EBITDA {as defined in {p) above) 1s considered
-0 be the key measure of performance The impact of adjustment items
is separately analysed within the information used by the CODM for
planning ard controlling the actvities of the Group and allocating
resources Details of these items are shown in note 4

All operauons of the Group are carried out in the UK the Company s
country of domicie All revenues therefore anse within the UK and all
non current assets are lkewise located in the UK No single external
customer amounts to 10% or more of the Group s revenues

2010 2009
£000 £000
Audn of these financial statements 35 55
Amounts receivable by auditors and therr associates in respect of
Audit of financial statements of subsichanes pursuant to legislation 208 117
Other services relating to taxation 78 110
Services relating to corporate inance transactions entered into or proposed
to be entered into by or on behalf of the Company or the Groug 5 -
Alt other services 44 91
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Financial Statements

Notes

continued

4

Adjustments are those temns of inancial performance that, in the opinion of the Directors should be disclosed separately in order to improve a reader s

Adjustments

understanding of the trading performance achieved by the Group Adjustments compnse the follovsing

2010 2009
Note £000 £000
Acqusition transaction costs o 3,562 -
Acquisiion and development related staff costs ) 1,993 -
Post acquisiion integration and reorganisation Costs () 1,159 -
Far value adjustments in respect of prior year acquisiions {iv) 596 -
Acquisttion and development costs 7,310 -
Bargain purchase credit {(note 20} {3,828} -
Adjustrnents for minimum future lease payment uplifts {note 22) (v} 1,560 1654
Amcriisation of intangible assets 887 340
Included in administrative expenses 5,929 1994
Loan financ.e costs written off on refinancing (note 6b} () 1,675 -
Charges relaung to dernvative inancial instrurments (note 6b) {vi) 3,228 6491
Inctuded in financial expenses 4,903 6491
Adjustments tax effect (note 7)
Current tax (vl {2,773) (463)
Deferred tax {ix) 136 (624)
included in taxation (2,637) {1087
Total adjustments 8,155 7398

(]

0]
(i)
(%)

v

(v}
)

Followang adooton of IFRS 3 (as revised) in this accounting period items assocated with busingss cormbinations have been takent to the incorme staternent as incurred
No restatement has been made 1o pnor years to reflect the adoption of the new standard Acgussiton transaction costs have been incutred with extemal parves
Following adopton of IFRS 3 {as revised) i this accounting penad iems associared with business combinations and developments have been taken to the income
staterment as incurred No restatement has been made to prior years to reflect tne adoptine Hf the new standard Acquis ticn ard development relatad staff costs were
capitalised during previous financlal years

The Group incisred a number of costs relating to the recrgamisaton and integranion of recent acquisthons

In accordance wath IFRS 3 {as revised) adjustments to the fair value of acquisiions completed in previous inancial years are recogrised in the income statement
Adjustmens relate to nan-..ash addit anal charges under 1AS 17 which incorporates recognisng the effect of future mimmum lease payment uphits on 2

straight ine basis

In Apnl 2010 the Group completed a new banking arrangements As such the unamortised element of loan fee costs en the raplaced debt wis writen off

Charges relating to dervative inancial instrurments mclude the movemerts during the year in the farr value of interest rale swaps which are nol designated as hedging
instruments and therefore do not qualfy for hedge accounting

(viil} Represents the current tax on items &} to (vl above

(4]

5

A deferred tax credit of E148000 (2009 £1.375 000} anses 1n respect of a charge relating to dervatve financial :nstruments in (i) above In addbon a credit of
£1251000 (2009 £ni) anses In respect of changes in *uture Corporation tax rates together wath a charge from the effects of tull provis on for deferred tax under
1AS 12 amounting to £1,535000 (2009 £751 000

Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year analysed by category was as follows

Number of ermoloyees

2010 2009
Residental care staff 2,619 2390
Mantenance 26 23
Management and administration 203 157
2,868 2570

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows
2010 2009
EQOO £000
Wages and salares 43,124 37519
Share-based payments charge 270 209
Social security costs 3,556 3140
Other pension costs 114 88
47,064 40956
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6 Financial iIncome and expenses

2010 2009

£Q00 EQDO

{a) Financial Income

Interest Income on financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss

QOn bank deposits 23 15

Total inancial income 23 15
2010 2009
£000 EQQ0

{b) Financial expenses

On bank loars and overdralts 3,510 4813

Finance charges n respect of finance leases 200 278

Financial expenses before adjustments 3,710 5091

lL.oan finance costs wrtten off on refinancing (note 4) 1675 -

Charges relating to denwvative inancial instruments {note 4) 3,228 6491

Total hnanciat expenses 8,613 11582

in accordance with the revision to 1AS 23 borrowing costs of £360 000 have been capitalised in the year Tha caprtalisation rate used to determine the

arnount of borrowing costs capralised 1s 5%

Loan fnance costs of £577,000 were mncurred on the refinancing and are amortised In accordance with the accounting poticy n note 2 ()

7 Taxation
(a} Recogmised in the income statement
2010 2009
Before Betore
adjustments  Adjustments Totat  adjustments  Adjustments Total
£000 £000 a0 FOOO 000 000
Current tax expense
Current year 4,215 - 4,215 3085 - 3095
Current tax on adjustmernts - {2,773} (2,773) - [463) {(463)
Adjustment for prior years - - - (224) - (224)
Total current tax 4,215 (2,773) 1,442 2,871 (463) 2408
Deferred tax expense
Current year {536} 1,535 999 232 751 983
Effect of changes in future tax rate and other adjustments - {1,251) (1,251) - - -
Deferred tax on adjustments - {148) {148) - {1379) (1,375)
Total deferred tax (536} 136 (400} 232 (624) (392)
Total tax in income statermeant 3,679 {2,637) 1,042 3103 {LO87) 2016
(b) Reconcibation of effective tax rate
2010 2009
£000 FQQ0
Profit before tax for the year 7,563 6809
Tax using the UK corporauon tax rate of 28% 2,118 1907
Non-deductible expenses 482 420
Over-provided 1n pricr years - (224)
Effect of changes in future tax rate (357} -
Deferred tax adjustments in respect of prior years (538} -
Other deferred tax adjustments (358) -
Utilisation of tax losses {307} 87
Total tax in ncome statement 1,042 2016

The caleulstion of the Group s deferred tax charge 1s sigificantly impacted because of the fact that I1AS 12 does not permit discounting of deferred tax

tizbilties This has been included in note 4 in order to present earmings measures on a comparable basis 2010 £1 535000 (2009 £751000)

Cargfech Heldings PLC
Annu! Report and Accounts 2010

33



Financial Statemenrits

Notes
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8 Earnings pershare

2010 2009

£000 £000

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 6,521 4793
Adjustrments (note 4) 8,195 7398
Proht attributable to ordinary shareholders before adjustments 14,716 12191
Weighted number of shares in 1ssue for basic eamings per share 47,829,070 44685480
Effects of share options in 1ssue 307,898 223490
Weighted number of shares for diluted earnings per share 48,136,968 44 50B570

Ditluted earrmings per share 1s the basic earmings per share adjusted for the dilutive effect of the conversion Into fulty paid shares of the weighted average
number of share options cutstanding durning the pernod

Earnings per share (pence per share}
Basic 1363p 1073p
Dilutad 13 55p 1067p

Earnings per share before adjustments {pence per share)

Basic 3077p 2728p
Dituted 3057p 27 15p
9 Property, ptant and equipment
Fxtures,
Land and Mator htungs and
puitdings vehicles equipTnent Total
EQQO EQGO E£Q0D £000
Cost
At 1l October 2008 144 117 2188 6857 153162
Acquisiions through business combinations 5829 4 36 5869
Other acquisitions 5021 1244 1820 8085
Disposals - (9] - (9)
At 30 September 2009 154967 3427 8713 167 107
At 1 Octaber 2009 154967 3427 8713 167107
Acquisitons through business combinations 27785 S9 833 28716
Other acquisitions 1924 866 2410 5200
Disposals {57} - (70} (127)
At 30 September 2010 184,619 4,392 11,885 200,896
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 October 2008 1340 801 2445 4586
Depreciation charge for the year 520 447 1233 2200
Disposals - i) - 5
Al 30 September 2009 1860 1239 3678 6777
At 1 October 2009 1860 1.239 3678 6777
Degreciation charge for the year 604 541 1351 2496
Disposals (5) - (14 {16}
At 30 September 2010 2,459 1,780 5,018 9,257
Net book value
At 1 Ociober 2008 142.777 1,387 4412 14B 576
At 30 Septemnber 2009 153107 2188 5035 160 330
At 30 September 2010 182,160 2,612 6,867 191,639

Included 1n the result for the year 15 a profit of £350 000 (2009 £250 000) on disposal of fixed assets
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9 Property, plant and equipment continued
Land and bulldings
The net book value of land and buildings 15 spiit as follows

2010 2009
EQDD EQOO
Freehold 175,314 14649]
Long leasehold improvements 4,750 4966
Short leasehold improverments 2,096 1650
182,160 153 107
Security
All of the Group s freehold properues are pledged as security for bank borrowings
10 Intangible assets
Software and Customer
Goodwall lcences  relationships Total
EQCO EQQD EQDO £000
Cost
At 1 October 2008 15574 739 704 17017
Acquisitions through business combinations 380 - - 380
Qther acquisiions - externally purchased - 208 1602 1810
At 30 September 2009 15954 947 2306 19,207
At 1 October 2009 15954 947 2306 19207
Acquisittons through business combinations 10 205 - 23932 34137
Other acquisitions — externally purchased - 713 558 1271
At 30 September 2010 26,159 1,660 26,795 54,615
Amortisation
At 1 October 2008 - 212 g2 294
Amortisation: for the year - 190 150 340
At 30 Septermber 2009 - 402 232 634
At1 October 2009 - 402 232 634
Amortisation for the year - 180 697 887
At 30 September 2010 - 592 929 1521
Net book vatue
At 1 QOctober 2008 15574 527 622 16723
At 30 September 2009 15954 545 2074 18573
At 30 September 2010 26,159 1,068 25867 53,094
Amortisation
The amortisation charge 1s recognised in the following kine items in the income statement
f000  £000
Admunistrative expenses 887 340

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill

The Group tests goodwill for imparment on an annual basis by considenng the recoverable amount of indmdual cash-generating units against

carrying value

Cash-generating units compnse collections of care homes Cash-generaung units nclude (hose collections of care homes acquired in separate
transactions on which goodwall has ansen Tiis 1s the lowest level at which gocdwill has ansen and 1s the lowest level at whicn goodwillis monitored

for imparrment by management There are no intangible assets with indefinite useful tves
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10 Intangible assets continued

For the purpose of imparment testing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has peen calculated with reference o value inuse The
key assumptions {or the pencd over which management approved forecasts are based and beyond this for the value in use calculations overall are
those regarding discount rates growth and occupancy rates ach.everment of future revenues and e<pected changes in direct costs duning the periods
In armving at the values assigned to each key assumption management makes reference o past expenence and extarnal sources of information
regarding the future - for example changes n indirect tax rates The assumptions nave been reviewead n ight of the current economic and publc
spending environment The hey features of these calculations are shown betow

2010 2009
Period over which rmanagement approved forecasts are based 1year 1 year
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast penod 0% 0%
Pre-tax discount rate 8% 8%

In preparing value in-use calculations for cash-generating units cash fiow penods of between 10 and 20 years have been used in order to match the
period of goodwill with the average penod of tirme service users are expected to remain in their relevant home Aside from this the nsk profites of each
of the cash-generating units are considered to be the same since the operations are all similar As such the key features set out above are applied to
each of the cash-generating uruts below A growth rate of 0% has been used to ensure a measure of prudency in the calculaton

The Directors believe that even in the current economic and public spending environment and taking Nt account the nature of the Group s

operatons any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts are based would not cause the cash-
generating urits carrying amount 1o exceed the recoverable amount

The carrying value of goodwill 1s spht between the following cash-generatiing uruis

2010 2008

EDQO EQDO

Acquisiton of the onginal CareTech Group 3,660 3660
Detam acquisition 2006 732 732
Lonsdale acquisiion 2006 3,052 3052
Counticare acqusiien 2007 1,074 1074
Qne Step acquisiion 2007 3961 3961
Beacon Care acquisition 2008 578 578
Valeo acquisition 2008 2,897 2897
Uplands acquisition 2010 342 -
Prestwood acquisition 2010 433 -
Fostering acquisitions 2010 2,728 -
Farmily Assessment acquisition 2010 2177 -
St Michaels acquisiion 2010 801 -
Roborough House acquisiion 2010 432 -
Greenhelds acquisition 2010 2,035 -
Frankbry acquisiton 2010 335 -
Branas Isaf acquisiton 2010 922 -
26,159 15654
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11. Groupundertakings

The Group has the following investments in trading suosidianies inclugded in the consoldaied results for the year

Ownership
Country of Class of 2010 2009
incorporation shares held % %
CareTech Commuruty Services Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 100
Carelech Community Services (No 2) Lirnited England and Wales Qrdinary 100 100°
Care Support Services Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100° 100
Delam Care Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100* 100
Sunnyside Care Homes Lirnited England and Wales Ordinary 100* 100
Lonsdate Midlands Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 100*
Daisybrook Limited England and Wales Qrdinary 100* 1009
CareTech Estates Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 100
Community Suppart Project Limited England and Wales OCrdinary 100 100
QOne Step (Support) Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 1008
Counticare birnited England and Wales Ordinary 100° 100
H20 Limited Gubraltar Ordinary 100¢ 1007
Hazeldene Limited! Gibraltar Ordinary 100+ 1000
One Six One Limited England and Wales Ordnary 100* 1000
Barleycare Lirruted England and Wales Qrdinary 100 100*
Vateo Liruted England and Wales Ordinary 100 100
CareTech Estates {No 2) Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 100
CareTech Estates {No 3] Limited England and Wales Crdinary 100 100
CareTech Estates (No 4) Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 100
CareTech Estates (No 5) Limited Fngland and Wales Ordinary 100 100
Beacon Care Holdings Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 100
Beacon Care Investments Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 ioo
Ashcroft House Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100¢ 100¢
Ashring House Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 100
Ashview House Lirmited Engtand and Wales Ordinary 100 100r
Beacon Care Limited England and Wales Crdinary 100 1007
Beech Care Linvted England and Wales Ordinary 100 106
Bright Care Lirnited England and Wales Ordinary 100° 100¢
Emeraldpoint Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100- 100
Glenroyd House Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100< 100
Kirkstall Lodge Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100< 100~
Leigham Lodge Lamuted England and Wates Ordinary 100 100
Palm Care Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100- 100<
Vosse Court Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100= 100+
Wyatt House Limited Engtand and Wales Ordinary 100< 100+
Addingtzon House Livuted Engtand and Wales Crdinary 1009 100
Magnolia Court Limited England and Wales Ordinary 1004 100
Victona Lodge Liruted England and Wales Ordinary 100¢ 100°
Hereson House Limited England and Wales Cichinary 1004 1000
Huntsmans Lodge Limited England and Wales Crdinary 100+ 100
White Clifts Lodge Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100" 100~
Rosedale Children s Services Limited England and Wales Qrdinary 100* 100
Roborough House Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100* -
Franklin Homes Limited Engtand and Wales Qrdinary 100" -
Farnily Assessrment Services {Brrmingham) Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 -
Greenfields Care Group Lirmited England and Wales Qrdhinary 100° -
Greenfields Adolescent Development Limited England and Wales Qrdinary 100° -
St Michaels Suppoert and Care Limited England and Wales Qrdinary 100" -
§t. Michael s Support and Care Properties Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100* -
Outlook Fostenng Services Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100* -
Prestwood Residential Homes Lid England and Wales COrdinary 100" -
Park Foster Care Ltd England and Wales COrdinary 100° -
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11. Group undertakings continued

QOwnership
Country of Class of 2010 2009
INCGTPOration shares held % %
Branas Isaf {Holdings) Limiied England and Wales Ordinary 100* ~
Branas isaf Personai Development Centre Limited England and Wales Ordinary 1009 -
Branas Isaf (Bythnod & Hendre Liywd} Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100" -
Branas Isaf {Liyn Coed) Limited England and Wales Crdinary 100" -
Branas Isaf {Dewns Cyfarod & Cysgod Cyfarfod) Limited England and Wales Qrdinary 100" -
Branas fsaf {Ashfield House) Limited England and Wales Qrdinary 100" -
Branas tsaf (Educavon Centre) Lirmited England and Wales Qrdinary 100s -
Masan Property Development Company imited Engtand and Wales Qrdinary 100° -
Coveberry Limited England and Wales Qrdinary 1007 -
Uplands (Fareham) Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 -
1 Has a UK designated trading branch Hazeidene UK Limited
2  asubsdiary of CaréTech Cormmunity Serwice Limited
b asubsidiary of Community Support Project Lim ted
¢ asubsdary of Beacon Care Holdings Limited
d  asubsidary of Beacon Care Investrents Limited
e asubsichary of H20 Lirnited
f  asubsidary of Greenfelds Care Group Limued
g asubsdiary of Branas I5af (Holdings) Lirmited
fi asubsidiary of Branas Isaf Personal Developrnent Centre Limited
1 asubsidary of Coveberry Limited
12 Trade and cther receivables
2010 2009
£000 EQCO
Trade recevables (note 21) 6,929 7168
Other debtors 490 552
Prepayments 4,015 2676
11,434 10 397
13 Cash and cash equivalents
2010 2009
E0QD £000
Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet 10,008 4321
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 10,008 4321

14 Other interest-beaning loans and borrowings

This note pravides Information about the contractual terms of the Group s nterest-beanng loans and borrowings For more nformation about the

Group s exposure to interest rate sk see note 21

2010 2009
£000 EQOO0
Non-current liabilties
Secured bank loans 115,934 90124
Finance tease liabities 1,455 1461
117,389 91 585
Current iabilities
Current portion of secured bank loans 5,000 5600
Current portion of finance lease labilites 866 525
5,866 6125
Terms and debt repayment schedula
Book Bock
Nornunal value value
Interest Year of 2010 2009
Currency rate rmalunty £000 ECDO0
Term loan £ 175(2009 14y 2013 84,611 63286
Revolving credit facility termn loan £ 225{2009 15) 2013 36,323 32438
120,934 95724

1 Margin over LIBOR
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14 Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings continued

At 30 Septernber 2010 the Group has available bank facilites totaling £165m sufficient wath cash flow from profits 1o fund present comrmikments
Term facilties are used to fund capital expenditure and short-term flexibility s achieved by the utlisation of cash resources

The term loans are secured by way of a charge over certain assets of the Group

Fiance lease Liabilities
Finance lease lisbilities are payable as follows

Mimimum Mimmum
lease tease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Principal
2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009
EOOQ EQOD EQOQ £000 EQUQ £000
Less than 1 year 1,035 169 866 73 206 525
Between 1and 5 years 1,685 230 1,455 2233 772 1461
2,720 399 2,321 2564 978 1586
15 Trade and other payables
2010 2009
£000 £000
Trade payables 3271 3605
Accrued expenses 21,550 15136
- 24,821 18 741
16 Deferred tax assets and habilities
Recogrused deferred tax assets and tabilitres
Deferred tax assets and labiltes are attnbutable to the following
2010 2009
Assets Liabibties Assets Liabibties
£000 £000 £Q00 £000
Property plant and equipment - 4,692 - 3669
Intangible assets - 13,712 - 6234
Derwvatve Ainancral Instruments (1,878} - (1729} -
Employee benehts - - 84) -
Share-based payments (381) - {317) -
Rolled-over gains on property plant and eguprment - 4,760 - 4937
Tax (assets)/liabriities {2,.259) 23,164 (2 130) 14 840
Net of tax liabilities/{assets) (2,259) {2 130}
Net deferred tax llablities 20,505 12710
Movement in deferred tax during the year
Acquired In
1 October  Recognised business 30 September
2009 nngarme  combnation 2010
£000 FOG0 £000 £000
Property plant and equipment 3669 991 32 4,692
Intangible assets 5234 (1085} 8563 13712
Rolled-over gains 4936 {176) - 4,760
Denvative inancial mstrurnents (1L728) {1501 - {1,878)
Ermployee benefits (84) 84 - -
Share-based payments (317) (64) - (381)
12710 {400) 8595 20,905
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16 Deferred tax assets and liabilties continued
Movement in deferred tax during the previous year

Acquired 1n

1Qctober  Recogrused busingss 30 Septerniber

2008 ncome  combinadon 2009

EOQO £000 £000 £.000

Property plant and equipment 2699 970 - 3669
Intangible assets 6234 - - 6234
Rolled-over gains 4 B66 71 - 4937
IAS 39 dervative financiat instrurments {354) {1375) - (1729
Employee benefits (84) - - (84)
Share-based payments {259} {58) - (317}
13102 {392) - 12710

17 Employee benefits
Defined contnbution plans
The Group operates a number of defined contnbution pension plans

The total expense relating to these plans in the current year was £114 000 (2009 £88 0C0)
Share-based payments
The Company operates 3 share option schemes The CareTech Holdings 2605 Aporoved Share Opticn Scheme {'The Approved Scheme’) the

CareTech Holdings 2005 Unapproved Share Option Scherme [ The Unapproved Scheme ) and the CareTech Holdings 2005 Share-Save Scheme
{"the SAYE Scheme )

Options granted under the above schemes together with those rermnaning at 30 Septerber 2010 are as follows

Optons Options Cptions

lapsedto  exercsed © remaining Option

Options 30 Sept 30 Sept 30 Sept price

Date of grant Scherne granted 2010 2010 2010 (pencsa)
13 October 2005 Approved Scheme 627 375 {282 457) (221457) 123,833 169
7 November 2005 SAYE Scheme 186 033 {43519) {142 514) - 136
2 August 2006! Approved Scheme 52427 {43764) (3424} 5,23% 292
2 August 20067 Unapproved Scherme 8220 (8220} - - 292
17 January 2007 Approved Scneme 162 885 {102 307) (23 236} 37,342 345
17 January 2007 Unapproved Scnieme 18263 7574) (5785} 4,904 345
21 March 2007 Approved Scherme 63077 - - 6,077 452
1 February 2008 SAYE Scheme 101,397 71 121) - 30,276 440
2 May 2008 Approved Scheme 114070 (54 394) {138) 59,538 410
2 May 2008 Unapproved Scheme 23843 {13967) - 9,876 410
14 Apnl 20092 Unapproved Scheme 92 308 - - 92,308 05
4 August 2009 Approved Scheme 191121 (34 008) - 157,113 3325
4 August 2009 Unapproved Scheme 165050 {22460) - 142,590 3325
12 August 2009 SAYE Scheme 202 069 (44 639) - 157,430 251
3 August 2010 Approved Scheme 283754 {1868) - 281,886 305
3 August 2010 Unapproved Scherne 210653 - - 210,653 305
3 August 20102 Unappraved Scheme 92 308 - - 92,308 05

1 Scheme grant of options which have reached matunty
2 Grant of norminal cost opbions subject to the terms of the unapproved scheme amended rules which include specihc performance critena delerrmining the tevel
and extent of exercisability These ¢niena are sel out below

Qver the pertormance penod ¢

(it share pace growth s less than 50% then the opvon shall not vest and shall not be exercisable and the option shalt lapse

{l  share pice growthiis equat to 50% then the option shall vest and become evercisable over 33% of the shares under opten

() share pnce growth 1s equat 1o 75% then the option shail vest and become exerciseble over 50% of the shares under Option

{» share pnce growth is equal to 100% then the option shall vest and become exercisable over 100% of the shares under option and

) share price growth falls between the above share pnce targets then the extent to v/hich the option will vest and the number of shares
under optron i respect of wirch the opton may be exercised will be determined on a stragni-lne basis between these powits

Appraved and Unapproved scheme options are exercisable at any ume from the 3rd anniversary of the date of grant to the 10th anniversary other than
nominal cost options which may become exercisable at the eartiest afier a penied of 30 dealing days {ollowing the 3rd anniversary of being granied
SAYE scherne options are normally exercisable wathin 6 months following the 3rd annversary of the date of grant
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17 Employee benefts continued
The CareTech Holdings 2005 Approved Share Option Scheme
The number and weighted average exercise prnce of share options 15 as follows

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average

Number exercise Number exercise

of share price of share price

options £ oplions £
Qutstanding at the beginning of year 513,606 293 582463 248
Granted duning year 283,754 305 181121 333
Lapsed dunng year (60,237) (3 53) {77818) {338)
Exercised during year {66,095) {2 31) {182 160) {171)
Qutstanding at end of year 671,028 299 513606 293
Outstanding and exercisable at end of year 172,491 221 171793 173

The opticns outstanding at 30 September 2010 were exercisable at prices between 169p and 452p The weignted average remaining contractual ife
of those options yet to vest 1s 2 2 years

During the year ended 30 September 2010 options were granted on 3 August 2010 The aggregate of the estimated far values of the options granted
on this date 15 £152 953

Tne farr value of services receved I return for share optons granted are measured Dy reference to the farr value of share options granted
The estmate of the farr value of the senices receved 1s measured sased on the Black-Scholes rodel The inputs 1nto the Black-Scholes model
are as follows

2010 2009
Weighted average share price £384 £330
We:ghted average exercise pnce £299 E2493
Expected volatiity 30% 30%
Expected Ufe n years 3 3
Risk-{ree rate range 3%-5% 3%-5%
Dividend yield 11% -

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histoncal volatility of tne Group s share price over the previous 2 years The expecied Ife
used in the model has been adjusted basea on management s best esumate {or the effects of non-transferablity exercise restrictions and
pehavioural considerations

The CareTech Holdings 2005 Unapproved Share Option Scheme
The number and weighted average exercise price of share optons s as follows

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exarcise
of share price of share price
options E optens £
Outstanding at the beginning of year 290,612 232 50326 367
Granted dunng year 302,961 212 257358 213
Lapsed dunng year {35,149) (3 50) {17072) (345}
Exercised dunng year (5,785) (3 45) - -
Qutstanding at end of year 552,639 213 200612 232
QOutstanding and exercisable at end of year 4,904 345 - -

The cpuons outstanding at 30 September 2010 were exercisable at onces between 0 5p and 410p The weighted average rermaining convraciual life of
tnose options yet to vest s 2 3 years

During the year ended 30 Sepiember 2010 ophons were granied on 3 August 2010 The aggregate of the estmated far values of the options granted
15 £284475
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17 Employee benefits continued

The farr value of services receved in return for share options granted are measured by reference o tne farr value of share options granted With the
excephion of the normunal cost share opuons the estimate of the farr value of the serv.ces receved s measured based on the Black-Scholes model
The inputs inta the Black-Scholes modet are as follows

2010 2009
Weighted average share price £384 E330
Weighted average exercise price E213 £232
Expected volatlity 30% 20%
Expected bfe in years 3 3
Risk-free rate range 3%-5% 3%-5%
Dwvidend yield 11% -

Expected volatility was determined by calcutating the fhistoncal volatiity of the Groups share price over the previous 2 years The expected
life used in the modet has been adjusted based on management s best esumate for the effects of nan-transferability exercise resinctions and
behawvioural considerations

The estimate of the farr value of the services receved i relation 1o the granting of the nominal cost share options i3 measured by reference to the
Monte Carlo smulation model

The CareTech Holdings 2005 Save As You Earn Scheme
The number and weighted average exercise price of share optons is as follows

2010 2009
Weaghted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Murmber exercise
of share price of share prce
options £ options E
Qutstanding at the beginning of year 252,429 283 233579 256
Granted during year - - 202069 254
Lapsed dunng year (57,848) {2 96) (47580 {448}
Exercised durning year (6,875) (1 36) (135633 {136)
Quitstanding at end of year 187,706 284 252429 283
Qutstanding and exercisable at end of year - - 6875 136

The options outstanding at 30 September 2010 were exercisable at prices between 136p and 440p The weaighted average remaining contractual life
of those options yet to vest 1s 16 years

During the year ended 30 September 2010 no cpuons were granted

The fair value of services recewved In return for share options granted are mieasured by reference to the farr value of share options granted The estimate
of the farr value of the services recewved is measured based on the Black-Schetes model The inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as fellows

2010 2009
Weighted average share price E£384 E330
Weighted average exercise price E2 84 £283
Expected volaulity 30% 30%
Expected ife in years 3 3
Risk-free rate range 3%-5% 3%-5%
Dnndend yield 11% -

Expected volatlity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatilty of the Group s share pace over the orevious 2 years The expected ife used in the model
has been adjusted based on management s best estmate for the efrects of non-transferabitty evercise restncions and bebavoural consderations

18 Share capital

2010 2009
£000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
49 585472 ordinary shares of 05p each 248 -
44 856 717 ordinary shares of 0 5p each - 225
53402 deferred shares of 05p each - -
248 225

The holders of crdinary shares are entitled to receve dividends as declared fraom tme 1© tme and are entitled to 1 vote per share at meetings
of the Company

48 Carelech Holdings PLC
Annual Report and Accournits 2010




18 Share capital continued
Moverments in the number of issued shares were as follows

2009
Issued
Issued n followang
At connecon share AL
1 Oclober with opbion 30 September
2008  acquisions exercises Pracing 2009
Ordinary snares of 0 5p each 44 538918 - 317799 - 44856717
Deferred shares of G 5p eacn 53402 - - - 53402
2010
Issued
Issued in fallowing
Al connec :on share At
1 Ocicher with ophion 30 September
2009  acqusiions exercises Placing 2010
Ordinary shares of 0 5p each 44 856717 900 000 78755 3750000 49,585,472
Deferred shares of O 5p each 53402 - - - 53,402

On 8 October 2009 the Company ssued 900 000 ordinary shares of O 5p each to the vendors of Beacon in satisfaction of considerstion due under
the terms of the 2008 Beacon acquisiion agreements

Cn 15 March 2010 E15m before expenses was raised through the placing of 3750 000 ordinary shares of 0 5p each at 400p per share

Reserves
Share prermium
During the year £353,000 (2009 E£186,000) of transaction costs assocated with the issue of new shares has been charged 1o the share premium account

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the premium ansing ©n the ordinary shares ssued as consideration for the acquisition of shares in anather company
The movement in the year ended 30 Septemnber 2010 anses in respeact of shares issued in the year as final consideration for the acquisiion at Beacon
Care Holdings Limited and Beacon Care [nvestments Limited in 2008 net of costs of E3461 125

19 Dridends
The aggregate ameount of dvidends compnses
2010 2009
£000 £000
Final dmdends paid in respect of prior year but not recognised as liabilities in that year 1,416 1204
Internrn dvidends paid in respect of the current year 910 714
Aggregate amount of dividends paid in the inancial year 2,326 1918

The aggregate amount of dvidends proposed and not recogmised as babilites as at the year end 15 366p per share £1814 828 {2009 3 10p per share
£1416000)

20 Acquisitions
(a) Acquisitions during 2010
The following acquisitons dunng the year have been accounied for as business combinations under IFRS 3 (revised)

Narme Date of acquisition % of equity acquired
Roborough House Limited 8 December 2009 100
Frankin Homes Limited 6 Apnt 2010 100
Farmily Assessrment Services {Birrringham) Lirmited 20 Apnt 2010 100
Greenfields Care Group Limited 28 May 2010 100
St Michael s Support and Care Limited 9 Jure 2010 100
Outlook Fostering Services Limited 11 June 2010 160
Prestwood Residential Homes Limited 20 July 2010 100
Park Foster Care Limited 12 August 2010 100
Branras |saf (Holdings) Limited 18 August 2010 100
Covebeny Limited (known as "Uplands”) 23 September 2010 100

In view of the large volume of relatively small acquisitions in the financial year information (s presented i aggregate

Contingent consideration 1s payable deperdent upon vanous faciors which are to be determined in future financia! periods Post-acquisstion earnings
form the basis for determirung the amount of payments The range of outcomes 1s esimated to be between Erul and £7 725000
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20 Acquisitions continued
The following provisionat tair value table summarnses the various acquisiuons made durnng the financal year

Fair value
Book values adjustment Fair value
EODOD £000 £000
Intangible fixed assets (note 10) - 23532 23932
Property plant and equiprnent (note 9} 22708 6008 28716
Debtors 3200 (225) 2975
Cash 4350 - 4350
Creditors
Trade and other payables {249) - (249}
Corporation tax (1057) - {1057}
Accruals and other creditors {3317} (943) (4 260)
Deferred tax {39) (8 556) (8 585)
45812
Satished by
Cash pad 36904
Deferred and contingent consideration 15285
Bargain purchase credit 3828
Goodwil recogrised on acquisition {10 205}
45812

The book values of the assets and liabilities were extractad from the underiying accounting records of the acquired entities on the date of acquistion
The farr value adiustments made to Intangible fixed assets property plant and equipment debtors and crediors are to reflect therr value on a going
concern market value basis The fair value adjustrment to deferred tax anses due to the reguirement ko recognise deferred tax and goodwiit on the faw
value uplifis to Intangible assets and property plant and equipment These acquisiions contributed revenue of £6 089000 and EBITDA of E1 869 000
to the Group s result for the year ended 30 September 2010

Goodwill anses due to the requirement to recognise deferred tax In respect of the far value adjustments to intangible assets and preoerty plant and
equipment together with synergies expected to arise from combrning operanons workforce in place and other mangibte assets which do not qualify
for separate recogniton

The bargain purchase credit 1s recogrised within admenistrative expensas in the consolidated income staternent and it represents the excess of assets
and labllines acquired (at fair value) over the fair value of consderauon

Each of the acquisiions was undertaken to enhance the Group s position in the industry In each case control was obtained through the acquisition
of the entire 1ssued share capital

(b} Acquisitions during 2009
Cn 16 January 2009 the trade and cerain assets of a step-down mental health business known as Lyndhurst were acquired and give nse to the
following fair value table

Ptant and Proparties Fair value
equpment acquredd admistment Fair value
EQ00 E£QC0D E00Q £000
Property plant and equipment 40 4371 1438 5869
Consideration
Cash considleration 5417
Costs of acquisition 452
5869
The far values of properties reflect therr value on a going concern basis
Dunng the year following acquisition revisions to prooerty and contraciual obligations were required as farr values were finalised
Following acquisition Lyndhurst contributed EBITDA of £545 000 to the Group s result for the year ended 30 Septermber 2009
{c) Reconciliation to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
2010 2009
£000 EQOD
Cash consideration paid on acquisiions in the year 36,904 5869
Cash considerat:on paid on previous year s acquisiions - 2842
Net cash acquired {4.350) -
32,554 8711
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20 Acquisitions continued
{d) Deferred and contingent consideration payable

2010 2609

£000 £000

Due withun 1 year 14,735 6868
Due in more than 1 year 600 -
15,335 65868

Regarding the current year amounts due wathin 1 year include £7500 000 in respect of a currently exercisable one-way option to acquire freehold
property entered 1Mo by the Group at the same tme as an acquisition Thes has been incotperated in the acquisition accounting appbed and therefore
forrms part of the consideration The decision (o exercise 1s entirely at the discreuon of the Group

(e} Proforma results
The result for the combined entity for the year as thaugh the acquisiton date for all business combinations had been the beginning of the year
15 a3 follows

2010 2009

EQ00 £000

Revenue 111,302 83636
Operating profit 22,449 18565

21 Financial Instruments
The use of hnancial INstrurnents 1s managed under policies and procedures approved by the Board These are designed to reduce the iinancial risks
faced by the Group which primarily relate to credit interest and kquidity nsks which arise i the normal course of the Group s business

Credit nsk
Finaricial mstruments which potentially expose the Group ta credit nsk consist onmarily of casn equivalerts and rade receivables Cash eguivalents
are deposited only wiih major financral insututions tnat satisfy certan credit criiena

Management has a credit policy In place and exposure to credit nsk is monitored on an ongaing basis Credit evaluations are carned out on all
significant prospective customers and all existing customers requinng credit beyond a certamn threshold Varying approval levels are seton the
extension of credit depending upon the value of the sale

Where credit nisk 1s deemed 1o have nsen to an unaccepiable level remedial actions Including the vanation of terms of trade are implemented under
the guidance of serior management untl tre level of credit nsk has been normalised

The Group provides credit to customers n the normal course of pusiness with a provision for speciiic doubtful recewabtes The balance includes the
amounts considered recaverable which also equals therr far value The Group does not requere collateral n respect of financial assets Dunng the year
there was no charge to the Income statement for bad or doubtful debts (2009 Enil

At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit fisk The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset Based on past expenence the Group believes that na impairment allowance 1 necessary in respect of trade
recewvables as at 30 September aged as follows

2010 2009

£000 £000

Not due 5,482 4010
Not more than 3 months past due 1,447 3145
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months past due - 14
More than 6 maonths past due - -
Trade recevables (note 12) 6,929 7169

Interest rate nsk

The Group hnances its ooerations through called-up share capital retained profits bank borrowings and the sale of assets if appropnate The Groups
Income (s by Its nature relatively stabte and #s growth is inter alia impacted by inflation Group policy s 1© balance interest rate exposures between the
short, medium and long term The benchmark rate for bank borrewings 1s LIBOR As at 30 Septermber the Group camed 6 hedging insiruments details
of which are as follows

s+ A4-year floating rate swap of £35m waitn a 2-vear counterparty discreuonary extendable perniod and reducing in pre-determined intervals
commencing 19 October 2006, at LIBOR with a cap rate of 575% and a floor rate of 478%

«  AS-year floating rate swap of £20m commencing on 28 September 2007 at LIBOR with a cap rate of 640% and a floor rate of 530%

+  AS-year swap of E15m commencing 31 July 2008 at LIBOR fixed at 5 25% untd December 2009 and nsing 10 599% thereafter

= A3year interest rate cap of £22m efrective from 1 July 2010 at LIBOR wwith a cap rate of 18% to 1 Apnil 2011 nsing to 2 75% thereafter and
including a fixed prermiurn payable quarterly in arrears for the duration of the contract

« A 3-year mterest rate cap of £22m effective from 1 July 2010 at LIBOR wah a cao rate of 18%to 1 Apnl 2011 nsing to 2 75% thereafter and
including a fixed prermium payable quarterly in arrears for the duration of the conwract and

+ A 3-yearinterest rate cap of £11m effective from 1 July 2010 at LIBOR with a cao rate of 18% to 1 Aprit 2011 nsing te 275% thereafter and including
a fixed premium payable quarterly in arrears for the durauon of the contract

Each of the 3-year nterest rate caps are designated as effective cash flow hedges The fair value of these at the reporting date was End The nisk being
hedged 15 the variability of cash payments for interest under floaung rate loans until 23 Apnl 2013
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21 Financial instruments continued

Liqurdity nisk

The Group prepares annual cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects Borrowang faciliies are arranged as necessary
to fnance reguirements The Group has avalable bank faciities sufficient with cash flow from profits 1 fund present commitments Term facilities
are utihsed to fund capital expenditure and short-term flexibility 1s achweved by the utilisation of cash resources in respect of financial labilites The
following table indicates contractual cash flow matunties

2010

Effective Contractual
interest Carrying cash less than 1.5 More than
rate amount flows 1year years 5 years
% £000 £000 EQOD EQQOQ £000
Trade and cther payables - {24,821} {13,731) (13,731} - -
Secured bank loans 5% (120,934}  (145,816) (11,632) (134,184} -
Finance lease llabiiies 11% (2,321) (2,720) {1,035) (1,685} -
Deferred and contingent considerabon - (15,335) (7,835} (7,235} (600) -
Derwvative inancial instruments - {6,314} {6,314) (2,877} (3,437) -
(169,725)  {176,416) {36,510)  (139,906) -

2009

Elfective Contractuat
intarest Cainyng cash Less than i-5 More than
rate amaount flows lyear years 5 years
% £000 £000 ECQD £000 OO0
Trade and other payables - (18741 {g211) {9 211) - -
Secured bank loans 5% 95724) {115076) (10 849) {104 227} -
Finance lease labilities 11% {1986) (2964) 731 {2 233) -
Deferred and contingent consideration - {6 868} (3368) {3 368) - -
Derwative inancial instruments ~ 6175} (6 175} {2 904) (3271} -
(129454) (136 794) (27063) {109 731} -

Caputal nsk management
The Group manages its captal to ensure that actmties of the Group will be able to coritnue as going concerns whilst maunusing returns for
Stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity

The Groups capital structure is as follows

2010 2009

£000 £Q0C

Net debt 113,247 93389
Equity 70,026 47414

Foreign currency risk
The Group operates entrrely in the UK and 1s not exposed to any foraign cureency nsks

Sensitivity analysis
In managing nterest rate nisks the Group ams to reduce the imnpact of short-term fluctuations on the Grouo s eamings Over the longer term
nowever permanent changes in interest rates would have an impact on consolidated earnings

At 30 September 2010 1t 1s estimated that a general increase of 1% in inwerest -ates would mpact inance expense and decrease the Group s profit
before tax by approwmately £309 000 (2009 £257000) Hedging instrurnents nave been included n this calculation

Fatr values
The farr values together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet are as follows
Carmying Farr Carrying Farr
amount value amount vatue
20190 2010 2009 2009
£000 £000 000 £000
Loans and recevables
Cash at bank and in hand (note 13} 10,008 10,008 4321 4321
Trade recenables (note 12) 6,929 6,929 7169 7169
Amortised cost
Trade payables (note 15) {3,271) (3,271) {3603) (3605)
Secured bank loans (note 14) (120,534}  (120,934) (95724) (95724)
Finance lease liabiities (note 14) (2,321} (2.321) {1,986) {1986)
Held at fair value
Dervative financial instruments (6,314) (6,314} {6 175) {6175)
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21 Financial instruments continued

Where market values are not avallable fair values of financial assets and hablites have peen calcutated by discounting expected future cash flows

at prevailing interest rates with the following assumptions being applied

« for trade and other recevables and payables with a remaining Lfe of less than 1 year the carrying amount 15 deemed {0 reflect the fair value

« for cash and cash equivalents the amounts reporied on the balance sheet appronmates o fair value

« for secured bank loans at floating rates the carrying value 1s deemed to reflect the fair value as it represents the price of tne instruments in the

marketplace and

« for finance lease Labibties 8l armounts are due within 5 years and are on terms similar to those estimated to be achievable i the market

22 Operating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

2010 2009

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
EQo0 £000 E£000 £000
Less than 1 year 5,982 146 4760 36
Between 1 and 5 years 19,920 244 16 344 79
Mare than 5 years 157,053 - 147483 -
182,955 390 168,587 115

In August 2004 the Group guaranteed the rental payrnents ansing on certain 35-year property leases following the sale and leaseback of 26 freehold

properties by CareTech Community Services Limited

In February 2002, CareTech Community Services Limited guaran.eed the rental payments ansing on certain 35-year property leases following the sale

and leaseback of 4 freehold oroperties by that Company

During the year the following was recognised as an expense In the Incame statement in respect of operating teases

2010 2009
Land and Land and
buildings Other buldings Other
£000 E0OO E000 EQOO
Charge for amounts currently payable 5,289 99 5056 77
Adjustrment for mirrmum future lease payment uplits (note 4) B 1,560 - 1654 -
Total recognised 1n the consolda*ed statement of comprenensive Income 6,849 99 6710 77

23 Related parties
Leighton House

Carelech Community Services Limited entered into a lease agreement in 1998 with F Sheikh and H Sheikh both Directors concerning the Group s

use of Leighton House Potters Bar The annual rent charged under the lease 15 £72.348 (2009 £72 348)

Transactions with key management personnel
Remuneration of key management personnel

£000

Salary 1136
Benefits 186
Bonus 204
Total shon-term temuneration 1526
Post employment benefits 41
Share-based payments 284
Fees 152

2,003
Directors of the Company and ther immedate relatives control 28% of the voung shares of the Company
Oirectors emoluments are set out on oage 23
24 Post-balance sheet events
On 13 December 2010 the Group acquired the whole of Care UK s children s fostenng operations for £2 8m On the same day the Group also
acquired Phoenix Therapy and Care Ltd which aperates throughout Scotland providing care to indraduals with spinal or brain injuries
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25 Accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of hinancial statemenits In conformity with {FRS requires management to make judgments estimates and assumptions which affect the
application of accountng polcies and the reported amounis of assets labliies income and expenses Actual results may differ from tnese estimates

{a) Judgments

The cntical judgments are considered to be the following

«  properies are carmed at histonc cost and

» disctosure of adjustments in order to assist users understanding of the financial statements

(b} Estimates
Estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongomg basis Revisons to accountng estimates are recognised in the penod n which the
estmates are revised and in any future penods affecied

In the process of applying the Group s accounting policies the Directors have made the following estimates and judgmenis which have the most
sigrificant effect on the amounts recogrised in the finencial staternents

Goodwill

The Directors use their judgnient to determine the extent to wihich goodwll has a value which will benehit the perfermance of the Group over future
periods To assist In making this jJudgment the Directors undertake an assessment at least annually of the carrying value of the Group s capitalised
gocdwill using discounted cash flow forecasts 1o dernve the “value 1n use” to the Group of the capitalised goodwill In the assessment undertaken in 2010
value in use was denved from discounted 10 to 20-year cash flow proiections using a year-on-year growth rate of 0% and discount rates relevant to the
cost of capital adjusted for nisks associated witn the ¢ash-genierating unit The projection period 1s 10 the opinion of the Directors an appropriate penod
over which to view the future results of the Group s businesses for this purpose Changes to the assumptions of discount rates growth rates expected
changes to costs and selling prices used In making tnese forecasts could signiicantly alter the Directors assessment of the carmying value of goodwil

Customer relatiocnships

The assessment of the future economic benehts generated from customer relationships and the deterrmination of the related amortisation profile
involves a significant degree of jJudgment based on management estimation of future potential revenue and profit and the useful iives of the assets
Annual reviews are perfermed to ensure tne recoverability of these intangible assets

Property plant and equipment

It1s Group policy to depreciate property plant and equiprnent to therr esurnated residual value over tner estimated useful lves This applies an
appropriate matching of the revenue earned with the capital costs of delivery of services A key elernent of this policy 1s the annual estimate of the
residual value of such assets and in particular of freehold property Similarly the Directors estirnate the useful ife applied to each category of property
plant and equipment which inturn determines the annual depreciation charge Vanatons in residual values or asset lives could impact signihicantly
Group profit through an increase in the depreciation charge

Current asset provisions

In the course of normal trading activities judgment s used to establish the net realisable value of various elements of working capital onncipally trade
recevables Provisions are establisned for bad and doubtful debts Prowvisions are based on the facts available at the time and are also determined by
using profiles based upon past pracuce apphed to aged recevables

In estimating the collectability of trade recewvables judgment is required assessing their tikely reabisaton including the current creditworthiness of
each customer and related agemng of past due balances Specific accounts are assessed 0 situations where a custemer may not be able to meet iis
financial obligations due to detenoration of its financial condition credit ratings or bankruptcy

Deferred taxation

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of termporary differences ansing This requires management (o make decisions on tre
recoverability of such deferred tax assets based on future forecasts of taxable prefits If these forecast prohts do not materialise or there are changes
N the tax rates or to the pencd over which the losses or tirming difierence might be recogrsed the vatue of the deferred tax asset will need 1o be
revsed in a future penod

Contingent consideration
The Directors use their jJudgment to determine the extent te which contingent consideration wall be payable To assist in making this judgment the
Directors use all available information when preparing these financral staternents
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Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 September 2010

2010 2009
EQOO £000
Profit for the year 2,086 3924
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year attnbutable 1o equity shareholders of the parent 2,086 3924
Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 September 2010
Share Share Merger Retaned Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
Note EOOG £000 £000 £00G
At 1 October 2008 223 38543 5037 3345 47148
Total comprehensive Income - - - 3924 3924
Dividends 27 - - - {1918) 1918)
Equity settled share-based payrments charge - - - 209 209
Share issue proceeds 2 309 - - 31
At 30 September 2009 225 38852 50357 5,560 49 674
At 1 October 2009 225 38852 5037 5560 49674
Total comprehensive income - - - 2086 2086
Dividends 27 - - - (2 326) {2 326)
Equity settled share-based payments charge - - - 270 270
Share 15sue proceeds 23 14663 3461 - 18 147
At 30 September 2010 248 53,515 8,498 5,550 67,851
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Financial Statements

Company Balance Sheet

at 30 September 2010
2010 2009
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
lnvestiments 28 34,946 31602
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 29 34,410 18554
Cash and casn equivalents 477 187
34,887 18 741
Total assets 69,833 50 343
Current labilties
Trade and other payables 30 332 206
Deferred consideration 1,650 463
Total Uabilities 1,982 669
Net assets 67,851 49674
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
Share capital 3 248 225
Share premium 53,515 38852
Merger reserve 8,498 5037
Retained earnings 5,590 5560
Total equity attnibutable to eqinty shareholders of the parent 67,851 49674

These financial staterments were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 January 2011 and were signed on its behalf by
r

F Sheikh
Evecutive Charrman

/’

D R Pugh
Finance Director

Company number 4457287
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Financial Staterments

Company Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 September 2010

2010 2008
Note E000 £0DO
Cash flows from operating actrvities
Profit before tax, being operating cash flows before movement in working capstal 2,086 3524
Movement in debtors - 112
Movement in creditors 126 207
Movement in intercompany balance (13,350} (2023)
Net cash from operating activities {11,138) 2220
Cash flows from investing actraties
Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired (893) (476)
Cash flows from financing actities
Divndends paid 27 (2,326) (1918}
Proceeds from the 1ssue of new shares (net of costs) 14,647 3n
Net ¢cash used in financing actiities 12,321 11607)
Net Increase tn cash and cash equivalents 290 137
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 187 50
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 September 477 187
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26 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Adopted IFRS standards under the histoncal cost
accounung rules

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company 1s exempt
frorn the requirement to presentits own profit and loss account

(b} Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred
tax Tax 1s recogrused in the Incorme statement except to the extent
that it relates 10 iterns recognised directly in equity in which case it is
recogrused in equity

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years

Deferred tax s provided on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporung purposes and

the amounts used for taxaton purposes The following temporary
cifferences are not provided for the imwal recogrition of goodwill

the initial recognition of assets or labilives that affect neither
accounting nor taxabte profit other than in & business comonation

and differences refating to investmenis in subsidianes to the extent that
they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of
deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of reghisation or
sattlement of the carrang amount of assets and liabilities using rax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 15 recognised only to the extent that it 15 probable
that future taxabte profits will be avalable against which the asset can
be unlised

(c) Turnover
Turnover represents management fees recevable i respect of the
penod to which management services relate

[d) Share-based payments

The share opuon programme allows employees to acquire shares of
the Company The far value of options granted 1s recogrised as an
employee expense with a corresponding Increase in eguity The farr

value 1s measured at grant date and spread over the perod dunng
whicn the employees become uncondizonally entitled to the oplions
The fair value of the options granted 1s measured using an opton
pricing model taking Into account the terms and condiions upon
which the opuons were granted The amount recogrised as an expense
15 adjusied to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except
where forfeiture 15 only due to share prices not achieving the threshold
for vesung

For cash-settied share-based payment transactions the farr value of the
amouri payanie o the employee 1s recognised as an expense with a
corresponding ncrease in lap'liies The fair value 1s imivially measured

at grant date and spread over the penod dunng which the employees
become unconditenally entitted to payment The fair value 1s measured
based on an opticn pricing model taking Into account the termns and
conditions upon which the instrumenis were granted The lability 15
revalued at each balance sheet date and settlement date with any
changes to fair value being recogrised in the profit and doss account

Where the Company grants cptions over its Own shares to the
employees of 1ts substdianes it recognises an increase in the cost of
investment In its subsidiaries equivalent to the equity settled share-based
payment charge recognised in its subsidiary s financial statements with
the correspanding credit beng recoegnised directly in equity

(e) Dividends on shares presented within shareholders’ funds
Dimidends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a
tiability at that date to the extent that they are appropnately authonsed
and are no longer at the discretion of the Comaany Unpaid dividends
that do not meet these ¢rnitera are disclosed in the notes te the
financial statements

{f) Cash and liquid resources

Casn for the purpose of the cash flow statement compnses cash
in hand and deposits repayable on demand less overdrafts payable
on dermand

Ligquid resources are current asset investments which are disposable
wathout curtailing or disrupting the business and are either readity
convertible Into known amounis of cash at or close to ther carrying
values or traded in an actve market

{g) Investments
Investments 1IN subsidiary undertakings are stated in the palance sheet
of the Company at cost less amounts wntten off
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27 Dwidends
The aggregate amount of dwdends comprises

2010 2009
EQOQ EQDC
Final dvidends pard In respect of prior year but not recognised as babilties 1n that year 1416 1204
Intenm dmidends paid in respect of the current year 910 714
Aggregate amount of dividends paid in the inancial year 2,326 1918

The aggregate amount of dividends proposed and not recogrised as habilities as at the year end s 3 66p per share, £1,814 828 {2009 3 10p per share

£1416000)
28 Fixed asset investments
Shares in
Group
undertakings
£000
Cost and net book value
At beginnung of year 31,602
Additions 3,074
Share-based payments charge n respect of subsidiary undertakings 270
At end of year 34,946
29 Trade and other receivables
2010 2009
£000 £000
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 34,410 18554
34,410 18554
30 Trade and other payables
2010 2009
£000 EQQD
Other creditors 332 206
332 206
31 Called-up share capital
2010 2009
£000 [A¢)s]0)
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
49 585472 ordinary shares of 0 5p each 248 -
44 856 717 ordinary shares of ) 5p each - 225
53402 deferred shares of 0 5p each - -
248 225

The holders of the ordinary shares are entitled to receve dividends as declared from time to trme and are entitled to 1 vote per share at meetings of tne
Company Details in respect of the reserves are given in note 18 to the Group financial statements
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Financial Statements

Company Notes
continued

32 Employee benefits
Defined contnbution plans
The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension plans

The total Company expense relating to these plans in the current year was £Enil {2009 Erul)

Share-based payments
There was no expense for share-based payments relating to the Company in the year (2009 £nil) The grants and related accountng treatment
adopted by the Company 1s identical to that operated by the Group under IFRS 2 “share-based payments” {see note 17)

33 Directors’ remuneration
The analysis of Directors emoluments and share options is included within the Remuneration Report on pages 22 to 24 This analysis forms part
of these financial statements

34 Staff numbers and costs
The Company has no employees (2009 none) Directors emoluments are paid oy a subsidiary undertaking

35 Related parties
The Company related-party transactions are disclosed in note 23 to the Group financial statements
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Directors and Advisers

Company Number Nominated Adviser and Broker
4457287 Brewin Dolphin Securiies Limited
12 Serithbeld Street
Registered Office London EC1A 9BD
5th Floor Metropolitan House
3 Darkes Lane Auditors
Potters Bar KPMG Audit Plc
Hertiordsire ENG 1AG One Snowhill
Snow Hilt Queensway
Directors Birmingnam B4 6GH
Farouq Sherkh [Executve Charmany
Haroon Sheikh {Chief Execuiive Officer) Solicitors
David Pugh {Group Finance Cirector) Pinsent Masons
Stewart Wallace (Strategic Director) CiyPoint
Karl Monaghan (Non brecuuve Drector} One Ropemaker Stregt
Christa Echtle [Nen-Executve Cirector) London EC2Y 9AH
Mike Adams¥ (Nan-Executve Drectort
Richard Steeves® {Non-Executive Deputy Chairman) Bankers
(it  appointed 17 June 2010 The Royal Bank of Scotland pic
{0 resigned 15 Apnt 2010 280 Bishopsgate

London EC2M 3YB
Company Secretary
David Pugh Lioyds TSB Bank PLC
Large Corporate
25 Gresnam Street
{ondon EC2V 71N

Allance & Leicester PLC
Santander Corporate Banking
2 Tnton Square

Regents Place

London Wt 3AN

Registrars

Capuia Registrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park

Feray Bridge
Huddersfeld

Wesl Yorkshire HD8 OLA
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